




























































































































































































Notes to Bolance Sheet

Rs. In facs
Note , As at 31st Maor, As at 31st Mar,
Particulars
No. 2023 2022
Amount Amount

o Terms / rights attached to equity shores

one vote per share held.

The company has only one class of equity share having par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,50,000 1,50,000
Add: Shares issued during the perod - -
Add: Bous Shares - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,50,000 1,50,000

c Details of shareholders (as per the register of shareholders) hé!ding more than 5% shares in the company

Particular

No of Shares %

No of Shares %

Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid-up
Usha Martin Ltd

150000 100%

150000 100%

d  |During the period of five years immediately preceeding the Balance Sheet date, no shares were allotted for

Shares held by promoters as at the year ended 31st Mar 2023

consideration other than in cash or by way of bonus shares and no shares were bought back.

|

e Promoter name No. of Shares No. of Shares
Usha Martin Limited 1,50,000 1,50,000
Shares held by promoters as at the year ended 31st March,2022

Promoter name No. of Shares No. of Shares
“|Usha Martin Limited 1,50,000 1,50,000
11 |Other Equity
Other Reserves
Securities premium account 135.00 135.00
Retained Earnings - -
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss -
Balance as at the beginning of the year 12725 110.00
Profit for the Period 41.24 17.00
Total 303.49 262.00
Total Equity 318.49 277.00
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SEN & RAY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TOTHE MEMBERS OF

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Finuneial
StatementsOpinion

We have avdited the accontpanying standalone finencia sHateients of BHARAT MINEY PRIVATFE
LIMITED (the “Company™y, which comprise the Halance Sheet as gt Muarch 31 2023, the Seatement «f
Profit and Loss (insludi e Other Comprebensive Inemel, the Staternent of Cliahges in Equity and the
Statementof Cash Flows [or the year ended on that dute und « summary of significant deeaunting policies
and other explanatory intormation thereinalier referred 10 as the “stundalone Tnaneial Satenicnis” ),

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and aceording to the explanations siver s, the
aloresaid standalane financial statemenis give the infornation required by the Companies Act. 20 [3 (the
“AT) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in canformity with the tndiun A ceounting
Standards preseribed under section 133 of the Act read wilh the Coempanies (Indian Avcounting Standards )
Rules, 2015, as amended. {*Ind AS”) and other accounti e principles generallvaccepted in Indiu, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2073 and s Loss, total comprehensive incone, changes in
equity and its cash fiows lor the vear ended on that dae.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audil of the standatone financinl stazements in accordance with the Standurds on
Auditing ("SA"s) specified under seetion F43010) of the Act, Our responsibilities inder those Siandards
are further deseribed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit af the standatone Financiil Statements
section of our report. We ure independent of the Campeny in accordance with theCode of Dthics issucd by
the Institute of Chartered Aveountants of India CHCALY 1ogelher with the ethical reguireoents thar are
relevant w our audit of (he saandalone financia! statcmens nder the provisions of the Ao wnd the Rules
made thereunder, und we have fultilied our other ethical respamsibilities in accordance with (lse
requirernents and the [CAI™s Code of Ethies, We believe thatthe audiy evidence abtained by us is sulTicient
and apprapriate (o provide a basis for our audic opinion on the mandatone finencial stalemes,

Kev Audit Matters

We have determined that there are nor other key audit matters 1o LOMmMUmCate in o repont

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Repart Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors i responsiole for the other infermation. The other infarmation
comprises the mformation included i the Companics annual repott, but dees not include the
consofidated financial statements, standudone Minancial statemenis and sur auditor's report
thercon,

Our opinion on the standafone financial statements does not cover the other imisru;ming‘ﬁﬁﬁw-ﬁu\md
eapress any form ol assurance conclusion therean. ST

o
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SEN & RAY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

In connection with our gudit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibilicy s 1 read the other
informition and. jn doing sc, consider whether the other information is materially ine wisistent with the
standalone financial swicments o our hnowledpe obtuimed dur ng the course of our audit or othierwise
appears w be materially missiaed,

I, bissed on the work we have performed, we conclude that there iy » matlerial missiatement of 1his oller
information, we are reguired o report that fact. We have nuthing te report in this regard

Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financig) Stittements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stited in section | 34(5) of the Act with
respect (o the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give o tree and iy view of the
financial position, financial performance, including other compretiensive income, changes in equity andeash
Hows ol the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other aceounting prineiples enerally aecepted in
India. This responsibility glso includes maintenance of adeguste aceaunting recards in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for satcguarding the assets of the Cempany and lor preventingand detecting frauds and
other irregularitics: selection and application of appropriste decounting podicies: making judgments and
estimates thal are reasconable and prudent: and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
interna| financial contrals, that were operating eftectivelyfior ensuring the aceuracy and compleicness of tie
accounting records, relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial slatenients that
give a true and fair view and are free from material wasstatement, whother due 1o frawd o grrar,

In preparing the standalone financial slalements. managenent is responsible {ar assessing the Company's
ability 10 continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters selited o Eoing cancers wnd using
the poing concern hasis of accounting unless managemen gither intends to liyuidwie the Company or 1o
Cedst operations, or hias no realistic aliernative but 1o do %0,

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Companys financial PEPOCLITE Process,
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Sta ndalone Financial Statements

Qur objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assuranice about whether the standalone finencial statementsas a
whale are free from material missttement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issue an audites Feporl
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of sssurance, but is not a guaraniee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detedt a mimterial misstatemens whes it CRisE,
Misstatements can atise from fraud or errar and are considered material if. individually or in the sgprepare,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic devisions of uscrs taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an gudil in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judernent and i niain prodfessivng)
scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

*  ldenrify and assess the risks of matetial misstatement ol'the standalone financial statenients, whetherdue

to fraud or ervor. design and perform audit procedures responsive 10 those risks, and obtain sudit
evidence tha is sufficient and appropriite to provide a basis (o our opinton, The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resutting from erron, geAFh
involve caltusion, forgery, intentional amissions, misrepreseniations, or the verr

contrel.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

*  Ubtain an understanding of jnternal linancisl Control relevant 1o the rudit in arder 1o dlesign aud
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances Londer section 14303071 of thye AL Wy are aiso
responsible for expressing our apen on whether the Lompany has adequate intornal bt ek
controls system in place and the pperiting effectivencss of sueh contznls

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and (he reasonalrivness of apcounting
estimates and related disclosures thigde by the managemenr,

= Conclude on e apprapriatencss of managenient’s yse of the S0ing eoneers basis o Catnting and,
based on the aundit evidence ubtained, whether a mater! Ungertatory cxists relaed u events or
conditions thar may cast signifieant douh on the Compamy's abiity 1 continue g5 & EOINE coneer 17
we conchude thet g material UNCertainy exisls, we are required o draw attention in our audior srepon
Lo the refated disclosures in the standalone financial stalements or, 1 sueh diselosures are inadequate,
te midity our vpinion. Our conclusions are based on the awlit evidence oltained HE tothe date of our
auditor's repart, However, future events or conditions may cause (he Compiny fo cease o continue us
& EONE concern,

* Lvalume the overall presentation. stucture and conten of the standalone financiag stuiciments,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Fnancial statements tepreset the wnderiving
transactions and events in a manmer that achivves fair presentation.

Materiulity is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial stetenents that, inclividually or
in aggregale, makes it probable that the ecanomic decisions of a ressonmably knowledpesble user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materialite ang gualifaive
factors in (i) planming the scope of our-audit work and in eviduating the results of our workzand (i 1o
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone fnancial starements,

We cammunicate with those charaed with giwvemmance reparding. among other matters. the panned seope
and timing of the audit and significart audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We alsa provide those charged with governance with u statement that we neve cormplicd with relevant
ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicale with them all refaticnships and other
matters that may reasonably be thougit to bear on our independence, and whers applicahle, relased
safepuards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we detenmines those maiters that
were of most sipnificance in the andit of the standalone financial statements of the currers period and are
therefore the key audit matters, We describe these mallers in our auditor's repor unless Taw o recilation
precludes public disclosure ahout the matler o when, in extremely rare circunstances, we determine that
a malter should nol be commumicated in our report beeause the adverse conseienices nfdaing so wold
reasonably be expecied 1o autweigh the public interest benefits of such comrmicaion.

Repurt on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Lo As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our sudit wi report that:

Ay We have sought and obtained all the information and explanitions which to the best of our

knowledge and helief were necessary for the purpases of our deedi, ; {_\__
Ry

£ S

B In our opinion, proper books of aceount as required by faw have been kept by the Lormpary/ sorfir
as it appears {rom our examination of those books, {efyie]

RN

o
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

¢l The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and | TaE 'rnrh.l:Jm; Othgr Cuonnprolicmsie Iconig,
Statement of ¢ hanges in Equity and the Sttenien of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report arein
dEreernent with the hooks of sceount,

d) In our opinion. the aforesaid stundalone finaneial stadements comply with e bid AS speciTed
under Section 133 of the Act

e} On the basis of the written represenlations received  fom {he directrs as on Mareh 11
2023 taken on record by the Bowd of Errectars, none of the directors s disualificdas on Merek;
3. 2023 from being uppointed as a ditectar in terins of Section o402 of the At

f} With respect w the adequaey of the internal tinancial comrols over financial yeporing of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls refer 1o our separae Heport in
CAnnexuwre A™ Our report expresses an unmeslitied opinion op the adecuacy arnl DpETE g
elfectiveness of the Compay's internal financial contrals over financial reporting,

2} No managerial remnuneration for fhe year ended March 31, 2023 hias hesn paid ¢ prosided bw tho
COMEPARY 1o iLs directors.

hy With respect 1o the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report i sccordunce with Rule
I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 55 amended. in our opinion md to the
best of our informarion and dccording to the explanations given 1o us:

i The Company does not haye any pending litigations which would Hnpact it financial
position inits standalone financial staterment

i, e Company did net have ay long-term contracts including dertvative contracts fur
which there were any miateriyl foreseenhle losses,

ti.  There were no amount wiieh were reguired to be transferred 1w the n vistar Educanion
and Protection Fund by the Company,

V. {a) The Management his represented thar to the best of its knowwledpe and belief, no funds
(which are material either individusll ¥ oor in the agpregate) have been advanced or
boaned or fnvested (either from barrowed tunds or share premiwm of iy othier sources
or kind of funds) by the Company 1o or in any ather person or entiiy. including forciern
cntily (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in weiting o
otherwise, thal the Imermediary shall, whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities fdentified in any manner whitsoever by or on behaif of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiarios™) or providz any puarantee, security or the tike o
behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b The Management has represented, that, t the hest of its knowledge and betiel. no funds
{which ure material emher individisally or in the agpregane) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign catity (Funding Parlies™), with
the understanding. whetlier recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Campany shall,
whether, direcily or indirectly, lend ar invest in ether Persans orentities idenified in
any manner whatsosver by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimare Beneficiarios™
or provide any guarantee, sacurity of the like on behal? of e Ultimaie Beneficiaes:

L, <81 {033) 40081899 +91 DE00S 68757 B info@senandrapcom &+ wwwsenandray cam
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() Buseil ofi the audit procedures thar have been considered reasonahle g dpprepriate in
the ciremtstances, nething has come o our natice thar has caused us b heliewe thi the

representalions under sub-c]
(a) and (b above, conss

At ) and Givof Rule 1 1fes, s prrovided tndey

It iy malerial misataterment,

Mo dividend has been

eciared o paid during the year b the

Compiny

2 As required by the (

Gievvernment In term

-ompanies {Auditor’s Report) Grder,
s of Section 1430113 of the A we

2020 fthe “Oraer”™) jsaued b the Cerdral
give m “Annesure B g Statement on the

matiers speeified in paragraphs 5 and 4 of the Order.

For SEN & RAY
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration Nn.;'},ll}

/Ngwuﬂj kv p

Binod Kr. Mahato
{(Partner)

Membership No,313§22
UDIN- 23313822B¢ QYONS35
Kolkata

Date: April 24, 2023
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE [NI}EPF.NIJI‘.NTAL-'I}I'I'HH'!S REFORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1) under ‘Report on Other Lepal and Regulatonn  Requiremenis
section of our report to the Members of Bharat Minex Private Limitod of vven dare

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Finuncial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Ac, 2013 (the “Aet™)

We have sudited the internal finaneiy) conirals aver financial reporting of BHARAT MINEX PRIVATE
LIMITED {the “Lompany™) as of March 31, 2023 in corjEnction with our audiy of (he sravadislone Ind A%

finaneial statements of the Company for the vear ended on thar date,
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Cantrols

The Management of the Comparny is responsible fir establishing and maintaining internal {inancial
controls bused on the internal contra) over financial reporting criteria eslablished b the Cnmipany
considering the essentipl components of internal contro! stated in the Citiiddance Note on Audit of Internal
Finaneial Contrals Cver Financial Keporting issued by the Institute of Churtered Accoustants of Indig
(the “ICAI™). These responsibilities include the design, Impiementation and mainienance off adeguaty
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuri ne the orderly and eficient conductor
its business, including adherence 10 eompany s policies, the safeguiarding of its assets, the reventionand
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compictenyas of the acconmting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable finsneial information, as required under fhe Act,

Auditor's Kesponsibi tity

Our responsibility is 1o CRPTEss an opinion on the Company's internai financial contreds over Nnaneial
reporting of the Company based on our audin, We comducted owr awdit in aceardance with the Guidance
Note ont Audit of Imernal Financial Comrols Over Finaneial Reporting (the “Guidanee Mote”} issued by
the ICAT and the Standards on Auwditing preseribed under Seetion FAACED) of the Conpanies Acl. 7013, 10
the extent applicable 1o an audit of internal financial contrals, Thosa standards and the Cuidance Noge
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and pedinn (he audit o oblain ressonable
assurance aboul whether adeguate internal fnancial cotitrobs over financial reporl newas established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in sl muterial respecis,

Chur audil involves perforning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adaquacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial feporting and their operating effectiveness, Dur ancil of intornal
fmancial controls over financial reporting  included ubtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a materis) weshness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of imtemal control bused on the assessed risk The
procedures selected depend on the auditors Judgement, including the assessment of the risks af' material
misstatement of the financial statements. whether due 1o fraud or error,

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained. is sufficient and dppropeiate o provide o basis forou
audit apinion on the Company s interna! financial controds system over Minancial FennTLIng.

Meaning of Internal Finanecial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial contral aver financial reporting is o process desivned to provide reasonable
asstrande regarding the reliability of financial reparting and the prepasation of financial Slatements for
external purposes in accordance with eenerally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal e
financial control over financial reporting includes those palicies and procedures {ha o1 & R{N
(1) pertain 1o the muintenance of records that, in redsonable detail. avcurstely and fairly reflect thes = "'*
transactions and dispositions of the azsets of the company: (29 provide reasomable assuranes | d[;ﬁ,ﬁﬂ A
transactians are recorded as NECEssary W permil preparation of financial stalements th dccordance wili \ =

e ily accepted aceounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of | Company are [eipe
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made only in wecordanee with atharisations of manngement and dizeciors of the campaniy: and (3
provide reasonable assurance reearding prevention op smely detection of unautherised ACGUISITIOIL, s T
disposition of the comrpany's assers that coutd have a materizl etlect on the firangial slatenienis,

Inherent Limitations of Internul Financial Controls over Financial Heparting

Because of the inherent limitations of imternal fiyancial controls over finureial reporting. incfuding e
possibility of caliusion or Improper managenient everride of controbs: material misstalenents due 1o ey
or fraud may ocewr znd pot be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internz! financial controls
aver financizl reporting 1o fufure periods are subject o the risk that the intermal financial conirol aves
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or than the degres of
compliance with the pulicies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

Inour upinian, to the best of aur information and according to the explarstions given 1o us, the Companyvhas,
in al! material respecrs, an adequate internal financial cantrol s¥stem over Pnancial reponing and such
mternal  financial  contrals aver tnancial  reporting were vperating  effectivelyas a1 March
31, 2023, based on the criteria tor internad fingncial contra) over finiancin: reporting estahlished Ry the
Compan censidering the cssential components of imternal comrol staed in the Crutdance MNote on Audiy
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued fy the [CAL

For SEN & RAY
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration Nﬂ.SllJﬂﬁé{}l: 53
Fah

e

(e "f‘i’i},
ff;Jhur/M“r“ PMas i ‘iT

i
l{‘:'ﬁ,'f’;f_"."l-“ ATR
; 5 N .y
Binod Kr. Mahato *’-g@\t,_;‘ 53
{Partner) Ed ALD

Membership No.313822
UDIN- - 23313822 BGQYONS353
Kolkata

Date: April 24, 2023
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SEN & RAY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXERE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUMTOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® scetionof
our repart to the Members of Bharat Mines Private Limited of eyen duie)

To the best of our infarmation and according (o the explanations provided toous by the Liompariy and (he
boaks of account and Fecords examined by us inthe normal course aof audis. we stage Iha1:

i In respeet of the Company 's Property, Plant and Laguipment and intiongible Assere:
The Company does not have any Property. Plawt and Fyuipmen: and frtangible Assgis
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (1) of the Crder are iy applicahle wy the ¢ npa

B The Company does not have any Inventory, Theretire, thye previsions of clause 3¢ of e
Orider are nal applicable 10 the SRTFHTRATIY

ii, The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured 1o compatica. s Limied
Liability Parterships ar ather parties covered in the Register maimtaiped under saction 189 ol the
Act. Aceordingly, the provisions of elause 3 (iii) tay 1o e of the Ordar are 1o applicable @ he
Company and hence not commented upon,

i, I our opinion and according 1o the information amd EXPlANation given 1o Ly, the Company has mn
givest loans, investments, Eudrantecs and securities, Accordingly, the provisions of chigse 3 vy af
the order are not applicable 10 fhe Company and heace not commented Hpa,

v, The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which
reporting under clause 3(vi of the Order i natapplicablo

are deemed to be depesits Henee.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub.
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the busjness activitics carried ou by the
Company, Hence, reporting under clause (vi of the Order 15 not applicable to the Company,

Wil b respect of statutory dues: :

a) According 1o information and explanations given 1 us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account. and records, in our opinion the company has not
paid the Income Tax Liability for the assessment vear 2015-16 amouniing (o INR 36,72
lakhs with the appropriate authority, Subject to this Hakility the Company has been
generally repular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Providen: Fund.
Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax. Sales tax, Service Tux. Dty of Customs, Duty
of Excise, Value added Tax. Goods and Services Tax Cess and any other statony dues
with the appropriate authorities,

b} There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Emnplinvees”
State Insurance. Income Tax. Sales Tay, Service Tax., Value Added Tan. Goods and
Service Tax. Customs Duty. Excise Duty, Cess and other material staluion dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months fivm the date they
became payable

¢) According to the information and explanation given 1o us amd the records of the
company examined by us in our opinion. there were no disputed dues in repect of Income
Tax, Income Tax, Sales Tax. Service Tax. Value Added 1ax. Goods and_Sepvige Tax,
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess (Except reported in clause Vil (it} ety
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SEN & RAY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

viii, Fhere wore o transactions refating to previously unrecardedd meome that hive boen sumendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments ander the Income Tix A L6145 of

1961,
ix, fal The Company has not taken any loans or aihay Porrewings from avy fender. Henee reporiig

under elause 3(ix)ia) of the Order i< e applicahle,

i) The Company has not been declared willtul defaalier by any bank or financial istitution ar
EOVEITIMEN OF aay povermmen| HLIJJJHriT_"..

(e} The Company has nol tsken any lerm koan during the weur and thare gre no IS e T T e
foans at the beginning of the yearamd hence. reporting under elayse Hissrelof the Ceder fsnot
applicahle.

(dHOn an overalf examination of the financial stateinents of the Compuary, fundds raised ony shon-
term busis have, prima facle, nol heen ysed during the year fiar lorp-term parposes Byl
Company,

ted Onan overall examination of the financial statemenms of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or 1o meet the oblbpations of iia
subsidiaries,

(f). The Company has not raised any loans during the vear o the Pedie of secumne and henge reparting

onclause 3tx ) fiel the Order is uor applicable,

X (a) The Company has nol raised moneys by way of initial public affer or furher prbsiic offer

Gincluding debt instruments) during the vear and henge reporting wider clause 31xa) of the
Order i not applicable,

(h)

Dwring the vear, the Company has not made any preferentiyl allstnient or privale placementof
shures or convertible debentures (fully or parthy or api ionally) and henee reporting uitderelause
HxKb) of the Order is nog applicable,

X1 (4] Mo fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been nitieed ar renoriel
during the vear.

{h) Mo report under sub-section (12} of section 143 of the Compantes Act has been fled in Form
ADT-4 as preseribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rufes, 2004 with the
Central Government, during the vear and upto the date of this report,

(el No whistie blower policy available with the Company, hence no such complaings received by
the Company during the vear (and upto the date of 1his repott). while derwermining the natie.
timing and extent of our audit rrocedures,

Aif The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under chagse (i o the Onder is not
applicable,
Xiii. In our ppinion, the Company s in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Azt

2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the reled parties and the details of relared pariv
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements pe regeired by the
applicable accounting standards,

Xiv, [n our apinion the Company is not required (o maintain ivernal audit sy¥slem as provided under

section 138 of the Companies Act read with Rule |3 of the Companies {Accounts) Ruies 201 4.
Henee, reporting under elause Jixivialand (b of theCrder is pot applicahle

HV. In qur opinion during the year the Company has not ertered info dr |u_ar__:-r:s;s_i!_tr:an:;.m:juma withits
Directors or persons connected with jis directors, and henge pr VSRS o Bection 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Compiny, / f} o
i
ol 3 ):5
el = ¥
%:.\ e {\';\
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SEN & RAY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
tay b our-opinion, the Company s non required o be resistered ander sectiont 435-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Acy, 1934, Henee. reporting under clause 3o Uikad. (bl (0) 0F the Crder 1
not applicable.

(&) In our opinion, there is no core investment Lompany within the Group (i delined in i € o
Investment Companies (Reseryve Bunk) Directions, 2016) and aveardingly reporing under cligse
Jtxvidd) of the Order is nin applicable

weif,  The( ompany has incurred cash lasses AMOGting to B Ge () diring the financial IER covered
by our audit and anounting o Rs 163,750 in the immediately preceding financi! wear,

xetil There has been no resignation of the skatutary nuditors of Company during the vear,

Xix, o the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of reatisation of finuneial assets and
payment of finaecial liahititics, other inthrmaion secampanying the financiat statements and oue
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and basad on our SRANTNAG R e
evidence supparting the assumptions. nothing has come 10 our allention, which causes us 1o
believe that any material uneerlaingy exists as on the dae of the audit repon midicating tht
Company is not capable of meeting its linhililies existing at the date of balance shewt ws and witen
they fall due within a period of one year from the batance sheet dare. We, Nevwvaver, state that this
i not an assurance as o the future viabilisy of the Company, We further siate that our reporling s
based on the facts up 1o the date of the audit report and we neither Rive amy pusraniee par anp
assurance that all lisbilities falling due within a period of one year from the balawe sheet dare,
will get discharged by the Company as and when theey fill dug,

AN, In our opinion, The Company is not reyuired o comply with Pt o ands Corpuorale
Sucial Responsibiliny (CSR) as provided under second provise to sub-section t5 band sub section &
of Section 135 of the Companies Act, Accordingly. reporting under ¢lurse Alaxmad and (I of the
Crrder is not applicable for the v,

For SEN & RAY
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration Nu.3[l.3{i-17_§-_‘,_}”_t

F

é"%'nmf A huﬁ,‘f{"ﬁfi‘;
Binod Kr. Mahato (oLt o
{Partner) \ T
Membership No.313§22 a2 e S
UDIN- - 23313822 BGOYONS353-S AT
Kolkata
Drate: April 24, 2023
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BHARAT MINEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

All amounts in Rs, hundreds

Note No As at 31st March, 2023 | As at 31st March, 2022
Amount{Rs) Amount|Rs)
ASSETS
Total Non-current Assets - =
Current Assets
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 4,732 1,413
Other Bank Balances 4 30,000 35,000
Others 5 736 377
Other Current Assets [ 686 675
Total Current Assets 36,154 37,465
Tatal assets 36,154 37,465
cQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 7 20,000 20,000
Other Eguity 2 - -
Capital Reserve - -
Share Premium - -
Other Reserve (21,647} {22,024)
Equity attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company {1,647) {2,024)
Total Non-current liabilities - -
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade pavables 9
a} Total outstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and
Small Enterprises - .
b) Total outstanding dues ether than to Micro
Enterprises and Small Enterprises a5 423
Other Financial Liabilities 10 15,345 20,705
Other Current Liabilities R a5 96
Frovisions 12 18,265 18,265
Total Current Liabilities 37,801 39,489
TOTAL 36,154 37,465

Note 1to 19 annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023 and the Staterment of Profit & Loss

for the period ended on that date.
For M/s SEN & RAY

Firm Registration No. 303047E
Chartered Accountants

Bincel 1xv. quJ«aﬁ'
Binod Kr. Mahato
Partner
Membership No. 313822
Place: Kolkata
Dated: 24/04/2023

%«

G S Rathi
Director
DIN: 07919431

>

D.).Basu
Director
DIN: 02498037

e
F,._/?.-: L
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BHARAT MINEX PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31=t March, 2023

All amounts in Rs. Hundreds

For the year ended 31st] For the year ended
Note No
harch, 2023 31st March, 2022
Amount (Rs.) Amount {Rs.)

Cther Incame 13 1,735 419
Total Income 1,735 419
Expenses
Other Expenses 14 1,358 1,379
Total Expenses 1,358 1,379
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax from continuing
operations 377 {960)
Teceptional items -
vrofit/{loss) before tax 377 (960)
(1) Current Tax payable -
(2) Less ; MAT Credit Entitlement - 3
Total tax expense - -
Profit/(loss) for the year 377 (960)
Earning per share (in INR}

Basic, computed on the basis of profit/[loss) attributable to 0.19 (0.48)

equity holders of the parent 15 :

Diluted , computed on the basis of profit/{loss) ettributable to 0.19 (0.48)

equity holders of the parent ] '

Note 1 to 19 annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023 and the Statement

of Profit & Loss for the period ended on that date.

For M/s SEN & RAY
Tirm Registration No. 303047E
wnartered Accountants

Pin odl HW-W

Binod Kr. Mahato
Partner

Membership No. 313822
Place: Kolkata

Dated: 24/04/2023

Coneeh Waod
G 5 Rathi D.).Basu
Director Director

DIN: 075915431

DIMN: 02498037




BEHARAT MINEX PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash Flow Statcment as at 31st March, 2023

All amounts in Rs. Hundreds

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2023

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

=

Profit/[Loss) before Taxation

Depreciation

Provision for Doubtiul Debls and Advances
Finance Cost

&d;

Operating Profit/{Loss) before Working Capital Changes
Changes in Waorking Capital:

Incrzase in Short Term Provision

Increase/{Decrease] in Trade Payables

{Increase}/ Decrease in Current Assct

{Increase)f Decrease in Fingncial Asset

Increase) {Decrease) in Other financial liability ,Current lizhility &
provisions

Cash Generated from Operating Activities
Direct Tax paid
Met Cash Generated from Operating Activities

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities
Net Cash used in investing Activities

Cash Flow fram Financing Activities

Finance Cost

Long Term Borrowings peid off

MNet Cash Generated from Financing Activities

i

Met Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Eguivalents during the year

o Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even dete.

For M/s SEN & RAY
Firm Registration No. 30304 7E
Chartered Accountants

B el Ker- Modna T

Binod Kr. Mahato
Fartner

Membership Mo, 313822
Place: Kolkata

Dated: 24/04/2073

377 1aG0)
377 {960)
(228) 223

5,000 (35,000
(35 {1377

[1,360] 053

2,953 (34,171)

3,330 (35,131}

11 42
3,319 (35,173
3,319 {35,173}
1,413 36,586
4,732 1,413

G 5 Rathi
Director
DIN: 07919431

s
Dl Basy

Cirector
DIN: 02498037




BHARAT MINEX PRIVATE LIMITED

Al vranty on Be Honesed;

!Equitv Share Capital (Equity shares of Rs 10 each issued, subscribed and

[fully paid)

Ner o Shares

Arront

Shores outstanding asat 31.03.2021
Changes in eguily shoe sapital doe te pror sermd e e
fpstaled Balinoe ol e béginning of the current repaing posiad

Charges insfuily shore copitel during the vear

200,000

20,000

Shares culstanding @s 2t 31,03.2022

2,040,000

20,000

Changas Ir ecuity share capita due to pricr paricd items
kestated halance a1 the begicvitg of the corrart reporting pores

Changes i equity share ragital during the year

Shares purstanding as at 31.03.72023

2,00,000 |

20,000

Other Equity

Farticulars

Artributable to the equity holders of the parent

Egjuity component
of compound
finamcial
Imstruments

Reserves and
Surplus

ltems of OC1

Retalned
Barnings

De bt Instruments
through OCI

Ascet revaluation
resErve

Total

A5 at 31st March, 2022
Profit for the year

Other comprehansive inromg

20,000

[22,024)

ary

(2,024
377

Total comprehensive income
Dividencs
TransTer ta retamed carnings
Ay other change (1o be spacifided)
secuisition ol a sussidiang

Acauisition of non-cantroling irterests

20000

(21,647

13,547}

As at 31st Merch, 2023

20,000

{21,647}

[1,647)

For M/ SEN & RAY
Firm Registration No. 303047E
Chaered Accountants

Brinoe) b Matslo

Binod Kr, Mahate
Partner

Membership Mo, 313822
Place: Kolkata

Dated: 24/04/2023

&(w‘/

eghe
G 5 Rathi

[Mrector
D 079159431

Mint>

Or.J.Basu
Director
DiM: 02493057




BHARAT pAIMEX PRIVATE LIMITED

al

b)

c}

d}

e

£

h)

il

L=

Motes to the Financial Statement

1 GEMERAL INFORMATHIN

Brrardt Winee Frivale Lvaled §USRAFLY) s 2 Privale Lmised Compony demsled i= lndiz and morparalod uncer the provisions of Companiey
Tre Company was incerperated for mining and eecevation altiebies whic goe vel tohe sorrmercid SKPL &5 & whally cweeed
fiary ot Wsha Marlin Limited.

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Caompany have been prepared an accordance with the Generelly Avcepsed Arzounting Sriacio'es in lndis [Indian
Gank) and INCAS (es applicable) to comply with the ccountng Standards specitied vnde Section 133 ¢ the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Rule 7 ol the Companies [Arcounts) Bules, 2014 and Lhe relevant provisions of the Companes Act, 2003 [“the 2013 Acl™) / Companies &ct, 1955
{"lhe 1550 Act™), #s applicablo, The finanzisl statements have bren preparcd on aceruel basis under the Ristosical tosl convention. The
dccounting policies accpled in the preparation of the financial statements are consislent with thase followed in the previous year

All gsisets and labilities have been classilied as corrent or non-current as per the Company's narmal cperating cycle ard other criteria sef ool in
the Schedule 11010 Lthe Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products snd the time betweon the soguisition of #ssets tor processing and
their realization i cask and cash equivaients, the Campany has ascertamed its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of curcenl or ron-
current classification of assets and lizbiliti=s.

Usze of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAF raquires the Management to make estimates and assurmptions
censidered in Lhe reported amounts of assets and lakilities (ncleding cuntingent zbilities) and the reponed incame and expenses during the
year. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the Francial statemenls are prudent and reasenzble, Euture resalts
cauld differ due Ly these estimztes znd the diffierences between Lhie actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the
resuits are krown / maierialise.

Revenue Recopnition

Revenue is recognised 1o the extent that it is probzble that the economic benefits willf flow to the Company and the revenue can be ricliatshy
measured, regardiess of when Lhe peyment being made. Revenue is measured al Lhe fzirvalue of the considuration received or receivable, pel
of discounts, volume rebates, outpoing sales taxes and othes indirect taxes,

Employees Benefit

Ind A5 19 is applicable forthe company bul there s na employes in the company; hence no provisian for emplayee benelits has been provides
tn the atcounts.
Fixed Assets B Depreciatian

A Fieed Assels are stzted at cost. Cast comprises of acquisition, and subsequent improvements therele including tases, dutics and other
incidental expenses.

B) Depreciation Is provided on straight line methad at the rates sepicfied in schedule 16 of the companics act 2013 an prorata basis,
Impairment Loss

Ar impdirment loss, if any, i recognized wherever the carrying amount of the ficed azsets exceeds the rocoverable amount i.e. the higher ef Lha
as5e1s net selling price and value In vsa
Taxation

Current tax is the amounl of Lax paysble on the tazable incame torthe year as delermined in accordance with the pravisians of the Income Tax
Acl, 1961

Deferrd tax iz recagnised subject 1o the censideration of prudence in respect of of deferred tax assets, on timning diflerencze, bring the dfierence
belween taxable income and 2ccounting income that originate in the one perlod and capeble ot reversal in one or more subsequent pericds
and is measured using tax rates and lawes that have been enacted or substantvely enacted by the balance sheet,

Earming Per Share:

The basic Eaming per share (EPS] s compuled by dividing the net profit after tas for the year attribuszble o eguily shareholders by the
weighled average number of cquily shares iszued during the year,

Frovision & Contingent Liabilities:

A provisian is recopnised when the Company has a present obligation as 2 resull of pass events and (L s probable that an autflow of resources
will be required to setlle the obligation in respect of which 2 reflable estimale can be made, Provisions (excluding retirement banefits) are not
discounted fo their present value and are determined based on the best estmate required 1o setthe the obligation at the Balance Sheel date.
These are reviewsd at cach Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the currenl best estimates, Contingent fiabilities are disclased s Lhe
Motes,

Frior period and extracrdinary items and Changes in accounting Palicies
Frior period end extraordinary items and Changes in accounting Policies having matesial imoact on the Singncal affairs of the COMPANY Afgr—=—r.
disciosed, P




BEHARAT MINEX PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to Balance Sheet

Al amowls in Bz, Hundrads

| Mote
| he Particulars A5 2t 31st March, 2072 A at 31st March, 2022
) i Aot Amount |
Mon - current Assets i
Total NDn_r_:rrr-_'nT Assets
Curre nrﬁglée s = - T
Financial Assets
3 |Cash and Cash Eguivalents
Eank Balances 1 In carent socounts 5,742 1413
Total Cash and Cash Equivalent ) 4,732 1,413
& |Other Bank Balances
Reposit witn a Bank dwith rmiaturity more than 3 montks ard less than 12 manths! 0,000 35,000
| Total - Other Bank Balances 30,000 35,040
5 |Dthers ﬁ
Accruad Interest on deposits and athers 736 377
Total - Other Financlal Assats 736 377
Total Current Financial Assets 35,468 36,790
& |Other Current Assets
Balance with Government AuthorilissiCommissioner -Kolhar, Chaibasal £33 633
TD5 Receivable 53 42
Total - Other Current Assels GEE E75
Total Current Assets 36,154 37,455
Total Assots 36,154 37,465
Equity and Liahilities
7 |Equity
Authorizsed
1G000020 o of Eguity Shares of R, 10 each 10,830,000 10,05,000
Issued Subscribed and Paid-up
Equity Shargs
200000 no of Equity Shares of Rs. 20 earh 20,000 20,00

Terms { rights attached to equity shares

The company kas only one lass of equity share having par value of Bs 10/- per share. Each sharehelder is eligible for ana vole per share held.

Reconclliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting periad

Mo of Shares

Amount

Shares putstanding as at 31.03.2021

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period items
Restated balance 2t the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in equity share capital during the yesr

2,060,000

20,000

Shares outstanding as at 31.03.2022

2,00L000

20,000

Changes in equity shara capital due to prior period itams
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting pericd
Changes in equity share cepital during the year

Shares outstanding as at 31.03,2023

2,000,000

20,000

Details of sharehelders (as per the register of shareholders) holding more than 5% shares in the co mpany

Farticular

J Mo of Shares %
I

No of Shares %

Erquity Shares of s 10/~ cach fully pad-up
Usha #artin L1d

r 200000 100

200000 100%




e)

Shares held by promoters as at the year ended 31st March, 2023

K
i

Change

during

5 No. |Promoter name Mo. of Shares |% of total shares the year
1|Usha Martin Limited* 2,000,000 100 -

*0.003% held by & individual shareholders on hehalf of Usha Martin Limited

Shares held by promoters as at the year ended 21st March, 2022 "
Change
during

5 Mo, |Promoter name Mo. of Shares  |% of total shares the year

1|Usha K artin Limited* 2,000,000 100 -

*0.003% held by b individual sharehalders on behalf of Usha Martin Limited




BHARAT MINEX PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to Balance Shert

Al anounts i Be. Hendreds

r;.nL-: Particulars As Bt 31st March, 2023 A5 3t 31st March, 2022
Wil
= o Amount Amount )
E [Cther Equity i
Retained Earnings
Surplus in Statement of Profil and Loss
Bzlance as at the beginning of the period {22.024} [21,064)
Froft {Lossifar the aoriod 377 [=60)
Taotzl (21,647 [22,024]
Total Equity [1,647) {2,024)
| Current Liabilities l
9 |Trade payables
Total putstanding dues to Micro Enterprises and Srmall Enterprises 2
Total autstanding dues ather than 1o Micro Fnterarises and Small Enterprises £ q23
Total Trade Payables (Current) 95 423
10 |Other Financial Liabilities
Derivative Finangial Instruments - at Fairva'ue through Frofit & loss
Interest Fayable on Income Tax 1R 455 18,455
Other Payables Rapn 2,250
Total - Other Financlal Lizbilities 19,345 20,705
Total Financial Liabilities -Current 19,440 21,128
11 (Other Current Liahilities
TLS pavable =
Miscelfarenus 96 S
Total - Other Current Lizhilities 96 a6
12 |Provisions
Cthers
Pravizion far Income tax 18,265 18,265
Total - Provisions -Current 18,265 18,265
Total Current Liabilities 37,801 39,489
Total Equity and Liabllities 36,154 37,465

L

&
| KOLKRTA




BEHARAT MINEX PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Statement of Profit and Loss

All amaunts in Rs. Hundreds

, Far the year ended | For the year ended 315t
Particulars

31st March, 2023 Warch, 2022
Amount Amount
13 |Other Income
Interest on Fixed Deposit 1,285 414
Liabilities no langer required written back 450
Total 1,735 419
14 |Other Expenses
Rates and taxes 29 a9
Auditors Remuneration 1,000 1,000
Provisicn for doubtlul debis and advances : _
CWIF Written off - -
Miscellaneous expenses 320 280
Total 1,358 1,375

Computation of Earning Per Equity Share (Basic and Diluted] {in INR}

For the year ended | For the year ended 31st

15 Particular
F1st March, 2023 March, 2022

Total Comprehensive Income for the period ar7 (950}
Less : Dividend on Preference Shares - -
Less : Dividend Tax thereon - -
a} Total Comprehensive Income for the periad from :

AP ; aTT (950
continuing operations
b} Mumber of Eguity Shares of Rs.10/- each 200,000 2.00,000
¢) Basic Earning / (Loss) per Equity Share [(a)/{b)] 0.1a (0.48)
d) Dilutive Potential Equity Shares - -
e] Diluted Earning / {Loss) Per Equity Share 0,19 (0.48)

Reruneration to auditors comprises of :

For the year ended | For the year ended 31st

Particul
b B 31st March, 2023 March, 2022
As auditor - for Statutory audit and limited review 1,000 1.000
Total: 1,000 1,000
158

The Company's net warth has eroded, however, having regard to the Financial Position, commitment fram
management, and efforts to revive business frevenue, the financial statements have been prepared on the basis
that the Company is & going concern and that no adjustments are required to the carrying value of assets and
lighilities
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BHARAT MINEX PRIVATE LINITED
WEEE T L narelal Aigkemnts allamounts in Bs hendreds

16 BE. Financiz!risk management objectives and palicies
Risk managament framework

Tre Lompany's bogrd o dirzctors hzz ovarall respensibdity for Ahe essablishment 2nd ovasight of 100 Tampa=y's risk man agernen framewark The Soad of
aiveslory iy respoasible for devalog g ana monitond e Covmpinre's risk Managament pol i

Tew snwrd ot directors idantdy ana asalyr the rives faced Dy the Sorpany, tosa1 appropr e fies | mits 2o cortil ans meanices risks and adhesenss (41 L
anc ara reviewad reguacly o reliest changes in marcet conditons and 158 Dampeng's st vites

The Comrpany's aclivilics ceposr it to market riss, hguiz ty risk ang cosdt | risk which 2re measurad, soonitsred ans maraged 1o @bide by the oinciples of risk
management

{a) Credit risk
Credit risk refers o the risk of firancial logs that may 2rise from counterpany %hire onits contrastual oligations resulting nfinancial loss ta lbe
Company. Credit riss encemppsses both the direct sisk of defeult and the risk of delesiorazion of creddworthiness us well 25 cancentration risks

THhE Campany it yat to start it business anerations, Hence Lhe sarme is not exposed 1o credil risk,

[b] Liguidity risk

The Company has bousdily sk moenitering procezses coverng shart-term, mid-term z2nd Insp-term funding. Ligu'dity risk iz manapes throogh
mzintzining adeguaie smount of committed credic facilities anc foan funds. Management regulacly montors projected and actua cash low dasz,
anzlyzes the repaprenl schedules of the existing financial azsets and liabilities and performs annuol delailed budgesicg procadu e Louples with
ralling cash flow forecasts.

The contractual matorities of the Compery's financial habilities are presented below:-

- Contractual cash flows
st March, 2023
Lexs than 1 year 1-3 years 3-8 years Above B years Total
Mor-derivative financial labelitics (Fs, ) (R
Borrowings (including currsnt mratneities) - A fl .
Trade payables G5 = = - 85 |
Ozher financial lahilities 149,345 - 19,345
Berhvative financial Fekilites - - -
Total 19,440 - - - 15,440 |
Contrictual cash flows 1
31st March, 2022
Less than 1 year 1-3 yaars 3-8 years Above & years Total
Non-derivative finzncial liobi ties . K= [Rs.
Barrowings lincluding currens maturisies) | = - - - -
Trate peyshles 423 = | 423
Cher fnancial liabilities 20,705 # - - 20,705
Cervetive fingnglal liabilitics - - - - =i
Total 21,128 - - - 21,128

{c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the falr value of Tulure cast flows of a financizl instrument will fuctuste because of churges in market prices The
compary is yet tostart its business aperations, Henze the same 5 not yet axposed to marges risk,

Derivative financial instruments
The Cempamy holds no deravative fnancal indlrument az on the repering Date, Hence the cormpany s nat exposed Lo the szid rsk.

[c.Z} Interest rate rish
Interest rate risk is measured by wsing the cash How sensitivity far charges in varizble intersst rates, Ay mavement in the reference rates could
have an impact on the Company's cesh fows as well a2 costs. The Carmpany has no interast bearing Labilities 95 onthe balatre sheel dane,




{o.3) Commadily price risk
The cempany s ves Lo slast its bosiness operatinas. Henoe the save s nal exposcd Lo commad by price isk

{d]. Denvative Financial Instruments
The company bas nethes asquencd 9o posssss ey durivellve dnancia irstromeants as on Loe boles e sheel date. Hence the comoany o el
expnned tothe s vk

[¢), Capital management

For the puroose of the Company's canital maragament, capital inclodes izwoed eguity capital and ather eouity, The Caripary’s primary cepta
mznzgerient objectives are to ensote B8 ahility to cortinee a3 a gaing toncern and to aptiosize the cast of cepilal in order to enmhance valus to
sharehnldars.

The Compary mangges 195 caphial strocture and makes adjustrments to it as and when reguired T maislain or adjost the capital structies, the
Campeny may pey dividerd o repoy debils, raise new debt or issue new shares, The Company rmoniler: capitsl using a gezring rane, which is ne
delt civlded by tota: conitol plus nel debt. Mo rmejor chenges ware made’in the ohjeclives, polizie: or prozeszses for manaping capltal tharing Lhe
peoricd ended 31l March, 2023 and 31st March |, 2022 respectively, The Company includes within met debt, Interest bearing loen: and
Bariowirgs, iess cesh ard cash equivalents.

The fzlowing table summorizes the capital o the Company -
All armounts in Rs hundreds

Parkicilars A5 ol 21st March,| As at 31st March,
1023 02z

Cash and casn equivalents frefer note 3] 4,73z 1,413
COther bank ba ances [refer nate £] 30,00 35,000
Total Cazh (a) 34,732 36,413
Mon - CUFTEn Dorrawings ) =
Current borrowings -
Current meturities of long-term borrowirgs
Total borrowings (b = -
Met debt (c = b-a| | [34,732) {36,413}
Total enuity 1 11.647) 12,024}
Total capital [equity + net debt} [d) | [36,374) 135,43.?[]
Gearing ratio |c/d] r 035 | 0.95 |
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Related Party Transactions - List of Related Parties and Relationship

| Names of related parties

Directars

M. Chrublyeti Basu
P Ashvin Lakhani
rAr. Gaur Shankar Rathi

Relative of Directors

Iirs, Surmana Basu

fr. Amar Krishna Basu
fArs. Sunity Basu

Iir. Jeetl Basu

Mr. Derp Basu

Wrs, Shashi Lakhani

W, Kamal Kumar Lakhani
Mrs. Pushpa Lakhani
taster Kunj Lakhani
Vedika Lakhani

Mrs. Meenakshi Daga
Mrs. Manisha Malpani

Mrs.Raj Laxmi Rathi

Late Ram Marayan Rathi
Late Chahagni Devi Rathi
Mr.&man Rathi

M. Akshay Rathi

Mrs. Manisha Rathi
Mr.Damodar Lal Rathi
Mr.Murari Lal Rathi
Mr.Suresh Kumar Rathi
Mrs.Shakuntala Chandak
Mrs.Bhiagwati Devi Mundhara
Rrs.Manju Devi Soni

A private limited company in which a director is a director

MA

Mame of Fublic Company inwhich a director is a director and
held along with his/her relatives relatives holds more than
twio per cent of its paid-up share capital

NA

Holding Campany

Usha Martin Limited

Subsidiaries of Holding Campany (including step down
subsidiaries)

1. UM Cables Ltd.
2. Usha Martin Power & Resources Ltd,

3. Gustav Wolf Speciality Cords Lid,
4. Usha Martin International Lid.

5. Brunton Wolf Wire Ropes F2C0.
6. Usha Martin Americas Inc.
7
8
)

Usha Siam Steel Industries Public Company

Lisha Martin Singapore Pre, Ltd.

Usha Martin UK Ltd,
10. European Management & Marine Corporation
11. Brunton Shaw UK Ltd.
12, De RuiterStaatkabel B\,
13. Usha Martin Evrope B.\.
14, Usha Martin ltalia S.r.L.

15. Usha Martin Australia Pty Ltd.

16. Usha Martin Vietnam Company Lid.
17. 77 Usha Martin Indonesia I\‘}:"-:-EL‘\
1E. Usha Martin China Company Lid.

= .

.

i o P
LTSy
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Other Statutory Information

{i} The Company do nol have any Benami property, where any praceeding has been initiated or pending agains
the Campany for holding any Benami property.

ii7) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck aff,

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet to be registered with ROC beyond the
slalulory periog,

{iv} The Company have not traded or invested in Cryple currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

{v] The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entitylies), including
fareign entities {Intermediaries} with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

{a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identitied in any manner whatsoever by or an
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneliciaries) or

ib) pravide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi] The Compary have not received any fund from any person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Campany shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsasver by or on
behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guaranter, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(wii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such

as, search or survey ar any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Mote; All amounts are rounded off to the nearest Hundred.
As per our report of even date.

For M/fs SEN E RAY
Firm Registration No. 303047E
Chartered Accountants

7
Binoel kv M ptnals Je/g,nzkw W

Binod Kr. Mahato G 5 Rathi D.J.Basu
Partner Cirector Cirector
Membership No. 313822 DM 079159431 DIN: 02498037

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 24/04/2023




SEN & RAY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

Report on the Audit of (he Standalone Finanejal
Stutcmmlsﬂpini:m

We have audited the weeompanying standsione fingneia statenems of Usha Martin Power & Resourees
Limited | the *Company™}, which camprise the Balanee sheetas at March 1 L, 2023, the Statemnens af Prafi
and Joss {including Other Comprehensive bieame), the Statement of Charniges in Equity and the Stazemiem
of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and 4 sumrnary of significan deeonnting policies and ather
explanatory information (hereinalter referred 10 a5 the “standalone Fiancial statements™),

In aur apinion and 1o the best of our information and AcCording 1o the explanations piven to s the
aforesaid standalone financial statenients zive the infarmation reguired by the Companies Ao N3 {1he
“ACET) i the manner so required and pive o true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Sandards preserihed uttder section 133 of the Ac read with the Companies (Indian Avcannting Standards)
Rules, 2015, ay amended. (“Ind AS™) and ofher ascounting principles generitllyaccepted in India, of the s1ate
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and its Loss, 1otal comprehensive ineame, chinpes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on tha: date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standajone finaneial statements i, accordance with the Standasis on
Auditing (“SA™s) specified under seetivm FE5010) of the Apt, Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditos Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statemonts
section of our report. We are independsnt of the Campany in aceordance with theCode of Ethics fssued LY
the Institute of Chantered Accountants of India ICATY together with the ethical requirements thar are
relevant 1o our audit of the standalone financial Statements under the provisions of the Act #nd the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities i accordance with these
requirerments and the 1CA ) s Code of Ethics, We heliaye thatthe sudit evidence obtained by us s sutficient
and appropriste to provide a basis for our audiz opinionan e standalone financial starements

Key Audit Matters

We have determined that there are no other key audic maners o communicate in aur repon

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Therenn

The Company's Board of Directors is respansible for the other information. The uther ntormation
comprises the information included in the Companies unnual Feparl. bt docs not include the
consalidated financial slatements, standalone financial statements and our auditor's Fepiar]
therenn,

O opinion on the standalone financial stmements does not cover the ather infermation and we do fiod
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

As.

; i & . dray.en
L +91(033) 40081899 +91 98008 68797 B infofisenandray.com & www.senandray.com
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A SEN & RAY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

I connection with our audit ol the standalone finarcial statements, sur respansibility is to read the atlwer
information and. in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements of o knowledpe obrained during the course of aur audit or otherwise
appears (o be materially misstated,

I, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstitement of this other
infonmation. we are required 1o repart that fact. We have aothing 1o reporl in this repard,

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Fingncial Statements

The Company’s Board of D rectors is responsible for the matters stated in section |34 5) of the Act with
respeet to the preparation of these standalone financial statemens that give a true and fair view of {he
finicial position, financial performance, inchuding other comprehensive incoms. changes in equity andeash
flows of the Com pany in aceordance with the Ind AS and other aceounting principles generally accepted in
India, This respoisibility plso includes maintenance of adequate aclounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act far safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventingand detecting frunds and
other irrepularities: selection and application of apprapriate accounting policies, making judgments g
estimates thut pre reascnable and prodent; ang design. implementation and mantennce of sdigiate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the fecuracy and compicieness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements ha
give atrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error,

In preparing the standalone financial statemen:s, MAnagement is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability 10 continue as a Eoing concern, disclosing. as applicable, maiers related 1o poing concern and using
the going concern basis of Aceaunting unless managemen! tither intends o liguidatethe ¢ Oy o to
tease operations, or has no realiste altermative but tovdo o,

The Board of Diractors 15 also responsible for overseelng the Compansy s financial reparting process
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standaione Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standelone Ninangeial sttementsas g
whole are free from materig) misstatement, whether due 1o fraud OF errar. and 12 issue an auditor's report
that includes eur opinion, Reasonable assurance is g hizh level of assarance, but js Bt i Buarantee that an
audil conducted in dccordance with SAx wil| always detect a marerigl misstaternent when iy exists,
Misgstatements can arise from frad or errerand are considered rarerial || mdividually or in the foErroate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the eoMamic decisions of users taken an the basis of these
standalone financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional
seepticism throughout the audit, We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone finuneial statements, whetherdge
to fraud or error, design and perfiorm: audil procedures TESponsive 10 those risks, and ol ALl
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting
& material misstatement resulting from fraud is tigher than far one resulting from errar, as fraud m
involve callusion, forgery, intentiona) amissians, misrepresentations, or the override ol internal

comntrol,
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

*  Ohtain gn understanding of interngl financial congpol relevant 1o the audip in order o desism audi
provedurnes that are apmropriale in the circumslinees. Under section 363005 af the A, Wi hm'e alsi
responsible for ENPICSSING our opinion o whether thy Company las adequale internal linuncial
contrels systam in Place and the operating effectiveness tFsuch controls.

*  Evaluate the appropristeness of secounting policies used und the reasonableness of HCCOUNLET
estimates and related disclosures made by the managenenr. 1

¢ Conclude an the appropriatensss of managemen’s yse of the 2NN Coneern busis o aceounting and,
based on the pudiy evidence obtained, whether A material uncenainty exisis related o events or
conditions {lyat may cast significant doubt on the Company’s gk fity to continue ax 5 going concern, i
we conclude that a material uncerlainty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in aur auditer’srepor
Lt the related disclosures in the standalone financial statomengs ary i such disclosures pre madeguate,
10 madity our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up totke date of o
auditor’s repar, However, future events arcondilions may cause the Company 1o cease 1o continug gs
8 FOINg concemn.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and canien of the sudalone finaieial stalements,
including the disclosures, and whethier the standalone financial statements fepresent the under Ving
transactions and events jna manier that achieves fair presentation,

Materiatity is the tugnitude of misstatemens in the standaione financial stpterents than i vidually or
in aggregate, mukes it probable tha the economic detisions of g reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financizl statements may be influenced. We consider Quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (j) planning the scope of our andit work snd in evalunting the resulis of aur work:amd (iiy w
eviluate the effect of any identified misstaterments in the stapdalone fimancial statements.

We communicate with those charged with povernance regarding. emong other matiers. the plasned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit {indings, including anv sigmiticant deficiencies in imermnal
Control that we identify during our audir,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complicd with relevan
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 1o commutcae with them gl relationships and sther
matters thar may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence. and where applicable, relared
safeguards,

From the matters communicared with thoss charged with EOvermance, we determine those matters thar
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone finmcial statements of the current pesiod and are
thevefare the kev audit matters, We describe these matters in aur saditor’s report inless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare cireumstances, we determine th
d matter should not be communicated in our report because the advepse Lonsequences ofdoing so would
reasonably be expected 1o outweigh the public inerest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremenis
I As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. based on our audit we report thar

2] We have sought and obtained alt the informaiion snd explanations which o (le besr af gur
knowledge and belief were fecessary for the purposes of our audit,
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

In our epinion, proper books of account as required by Taw have been kept by 1he Company so far
as itappears from our examination of these hooks,

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and |.oss including Cither Comprehensive Income.
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Staterment v ¢ ash Flows dealy with b this Repon arcin
dgrecinent with the books of aecount

[ our opinion, the aforesald standalone financial statements comply with the Ind A% specified
under Section 133 of the Ac:

O the basis of the wrinten represeittations  received from the divectors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Dircetors, nene of the dirsotors {« disqualifivdas an March
31,2023 from Being appointed as a director W rerms of Section 164121 of the Aot

With respect 1o the adequacy of the internal financinl controls aver financial reparting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1 our separate fepoar in
“Annexure A”. Our Teport expresses an unmodilied opimion an the adequary and operaling
eifectiveness of the Company’s internal fnagcil canteods over financial reparting,

No managerial remuneration for the year ended Murch 3 L2023 has been paid provided by the
CompEny 1o s directors,

With respect 10 the other mallers W be included in the Auditors Repont in accordance with Foule
1 of the Companies (Audit andg Auditars) Rules, 2014, as anended, in our apinion anid o he
best of our informarion R aceording to the explanations Biven o s

i The Company has disclosed the irapiaet of perding htigations (if Ay on s fnsnois|
positian inits standalone financial statements,

ii.  The Company did net have any long-remn comraces including derivative comtracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losyes,

fii.  There were no ameunt which were required 10 e tramsterred w0 the Investor Fducation
and Protection Fund by the Compaiy

iv. (1) The Mansgement has represented that 1o the best of it knowledge and belicl. no funds
{which are material ejther individually or in (he aggregale) have been sdvanced or
foaned or invesied (either fram borrewed funds or share Fremium ar wny other sources
or kind of Tunds) by the Company to or in any other Persen or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whetler, directly or indireerly end or invest in
other persons or entiijes identified in any manner whatsaever by or on behalf of the
Company {“Ullimare Beneficiaries™) or provide WY gudraniee, security or the like on
behalf of the Uhtimute Beneficiaries:

(b)) The Minarement hus represented. that, to the besi of e knowledge wnd belief, no funds
{which are material either tndividually or in the Aggregule) have been receivod by the
Company from any person or entily, including fareign e ity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or atherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly o indirectly, lend or frvest in other persons or entitics identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Fimding Party (~Ultimate Beneficiaries™

ar provide any guarantee, securiny or the ke an behalf of e Ulimate Beaeticiar g
: 3 wwiesnandray. cos

o

3

Kotkats |
Action Area [1-C, New
Town, Kolkatz-700161

West Bengal

£ H luro : Atmedabad :
Berhampore ; New Dethi Mumbal ; Chennai ; Benga Pl
15473, RN Tagore | C-470, Golf View | 322, V Mall, Near Sai Oham | Flat 38, Ametiyst, Fiel 58, Tower 2, 305, University Plaz,
Road, Berhampore, | Appartmers, Safet, | Temple Thakur Compiex | Diympia Opatrw Navalur SAN Clermant ORR, siiversity Roge,
g =

Murshidabad-T42101 | New Delhe 110017 Kandivall Fast Mumhe) OMR, Chesngi-630137 Hetbal, Bergaluru-560045, | Near Wijay Crose oad,

tre-A0010] el Na Karnaiaka Navrangpura,
West Bengal Maharashire-400;0] Ta i i i o

Gujarat



CA SEN & RAY

-CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

e Based an the audi procedures that have been vonsidered reasonable
the circumslances, nothing has comne 1o qur Hotice tha has caused s 1o helieve thar the
tepresentations under sub-chiuse (1) and Hidof Rule | e, as provided under
ta) and (b ahave, conmain any material misstarenien

antd appropriatein

Vo Nodividend has been declared or paict during the year by 1he Clonspany

. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Repart) Order, 2020 tthe “Order™
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act v pive in *Annevure B a statement on the
matiers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

) issued by the Cepral

For SEN & RAY
Chartered Accountants
{Firm’s Repistratioy No.303047E)

/ﬁ"-m,..(j K n{.ﬁhﬁ:_t_-

Binod Kr, Mahatg
(Partner)
Membership No.313822

UDIN- 2331 3822BGOYOMES 46
Place: Kolkata

Date: April 24, 2023
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUD] TOR'S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph W under ‘Repart on Othier Legal and Regulatory Hequirements®
section of our repurt  the Members of Usha Martin Power & Resources Limited of pien ate)

Report on the Interny Financial Controls Over Finaneja| Reporting under € lagee fi} of sub.
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the = Aer)

We have audited the internal financial contrals over financial eparting of USHA MARTIN POWER &
RESOURCES LIMITED {the “Company ™) as af March 3 L 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Compuny for the Yorended onthar darg,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining interpal Tinancial
controls based on the internal control over financiu reporting criteria cstablished by the Company
considering the essential components of internu) control stated in ghe Guidance Note on Audit of [Mernal
Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting fssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of fridia
(the "ICATI"}, These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequute
intemnal financial controls that were operating effectively fir ensuring the orderty and efficient conductnf
its blisiness, including adherence 1o company s policies, the safegusrding of its assets. the Preventionand
detection of frauds and errors, the aceuracy and completeness of the aceounting records, mid the timel ¥
preparation of reliable finaneia] information, as required under the Ay,

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur responsibility iz 10 EXPrCSE an opinion on the Company's internal financis) controls over financizl
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance wigh the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Finaneis| Reporting (the “Guidanpe Woke™) jssued by
the ICAT and the S1andards o Auditing preseribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, 10
the extent applicabic 1a on audit of internal financial controls, Those Standards and 1he Cruidance Note
require thal we comply with ethical requirements and plan and pertorm the audit 10 obiain ressimable
asstranee about whoether adequare internal financial controds over finaneizl reporting wis established md
mainteined and if such controls operated effectively in all muterial respects.

Our audit invoives performing procedures to obtain audi evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls s¥sem over Tinancis| reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included abtsining an understanding of imernal {inanciaf
comtrols over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weukness exists, and testing and
evajuating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend an the auditee’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstaternent of the financigl staiements, whether due to fraud or ervor,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained. is sufficient amd appropriate 1 provide a basis forour
audit opinion on the Company”'s intemal financial controks System over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internul financial control over financial reporting is a process desigmed to provide reasonabie
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financig| slatements for
external purposes in accordance with generaily accepred gecounting principles. A commpany's inigmal
financial control over financial reporting includes thase policies and procedures that

{1} pertain 10 the mainlenance of records thar, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftest the /{!
transactions and dispositions of the assels of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance Lhay =
ransactions are recordad as necessary 10 permit preparation of financial statements in socordanee

withgenerally accepted accouting principles, and that rece; e and expendigures af the o fre
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SEN & RAY

made only i accordance with authorisations of management and direciars of the campany. and 13)
provide reasonable assuranes regardig RLevention or timely detection of unawherised geguisiian use, o
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the fingncial Statenény

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrals over Financinl Reporting

Because of the Inheren Imitations of internal fihancial controls over linancigl reporing, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of cantrofs, material misstatements due 1 eror
of frausd may oeeur and not b detected. Also, proiections of dny evaluation of the interny| financigbeantrols
over financinl Feporting o filure periods are sublect 1o the risk thae the nternal finuncial conteoi over
financial reporling may become inadequate hecause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

b our opinion, to the best of our information and according o the explanations given to us. the Companyhas,
in all material respects. an adequate internal financial controfs system over financial reporting and such
interntal  financial  controls aver  financin reporing  were operating  effectivelyas ar March
31, 2023, based on the criterin for internal financial comrol over financial repan ing cstablished by the
Company considering the essential components of internaf conrrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audi
of Internal Finuncial Controls Over Financial Reporting issyed by the ICA,

For SEN & RAY
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.303047E)

/2'! ‘H-n:r/ v !LT_@/@”

Binod Kr. Mahato

(Partner)

Membership Na.313522
UDIN- 233138228 DYOMB546

Place: Kolkata
Drate: April 24, 2023
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXURE ‘B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in pa ragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regubatory Requirements' sectionof
UF report o the Members of Ushg Martin Power & Resources Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and aceord ing to the axplamations provided 10 us by the Coempany and e
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit. we state that:

i

iii.

iv,

Wi,

Yil,

in respect of the Company s Property, Plant and Cquipment and Intangible Assets:

The Cr}mpan}' does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets Fherefore,
the provisions of clause 3 (i) of the Order are not applicable to the Company,

The Company does not have any Inventory. Therefore, the Provisions of clause 3 (i) of the

Order are not applicabie to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured ar Unsecured o companies, firme, Limited
Liability parinerships or other partics covered in the Register maintained under section 189 nf 1he
Act, Acvordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) ta) 10 ¢ ¢y of the Order are not applicable 1o the
Company and henice nor commented upon,

In our opinion and aceording to the information and expianation given to us, the ¢ ompany has not
given loans, investments, guarantees and securitics, Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (ivh o
the order are ned applicable o the Company and lienee rot vommeanted upan,

The Company has ot accepted any deposit ar amounts whicl; are deemed to be depesits, Henee,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order i il applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Cioverniment under suh-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried our bvihe
Company. Henee, reporting under clause {vi) ofthe Cheder is not applicable 10 the © Oy,

I respec) of slEtutory dues;

a} According to information and explanations given 0 us and on the hasis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular
in depositing undisputed statwtory dues including Providemt Fund, Fmplovees State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales 1ax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Vaiue
added Tax, Goods and Services Tax Cess and 4ny other statutory dues with the APpropricte
authorities,

b) There were no undisputed amounts pavable in respect of Provident Fund. Lmplovees
State Insurance. Income Tax. Sales Tax. Service Tax. Value Added Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Customs Duty. Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in

arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became pavable

) According to the information and explanration given to us and the records of the
company examined by us in our opinion, there w ere no disputed dues in repeet of Income
Tax, Income Tax. Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess |

£
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viii, There were no transactions refating 1o previously unrecarded incorme that have heon surrendared pr
disclosed as income during the vear in (e L% assessmicits under (he Hieone Tas s 1961 (43 ar

9],
i (4} The Company has noy tiken any feans or othe Barrowings from any lender. Henee reporing

uttder elause 3000 of the Order is e applicable,

b The Company hus not been declared willfut defnslier by any bank or fivaneiz] institution or
BOVErnIMCnt o1 any government authority,

te} The Company has net faken any teem foan during the year and there are no olistanding term
loans &t the beginning of the Year and henee, reparting under elause 3iiviees of the Order tano
applicable,

{d1 O an overall examination of the financial statemens of the Company, funds mijsed on short-
term basis have. prima facie, been used during the vear fip losg-term purposes by the
Company,

{e} On an overall examination of the financial sttements of the Company, the Corpany has no
tken any funds fram any entity or person on sccount of or o mest the ohli atioms of its
subsidiaries,

(f) The Company has not rajsed Ay founs during the vear o the pledie of secirity s henee reporiing
an clanse 3(ix ) Dol the Order is not applicable.

. fa) The Company has not raised moneys by way of indijgl public offer or further public offer
(including deby instruments) diring the vear and hence Eeporting under clause 3xjia) of the
Order is not applicable,

(b} During the year. the ¢ umpany has not made any preferential aflotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentupes (fully or partiv or g pionally) and hepee reporting undercluyse
3(x)(h) of the Order is not applicanle,

X, {a} Mo fraud by the Company and o material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the vear,

ih) No fepart under sub-section (127 of section 143 af the C ompanies Aot his bean filed in Famnm
ADTA a8 prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 with the
Central Governmen, during the venr and upto the date of this report,

{e) No whistle blower pulicy available with the Company, hence 1o such COMplns received hy
the Company during the year (and uptar the date of this report). while determining {le M,
timing and extent of our audit priscedures,

Xil. The Company is not o Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clavse (xii) of the Order is noy
applicable,
xiii, In owr opinion, the Company is in complianee with Section 177 and IBE of the Companies At

2013 with respect 1o applicable transuctions with the related parties and the detai)s of reluted pary
tansactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standarde,

xiv, In our opinion the Company is not required to maintain internal audit system as provided under
section 138 of the Companies Act read with Rule 13 of the Companies fAccouns) Rules 2014,
Henee, reporting under clause StxivNa) and (h) of theOrder is nop applicable

£
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KV, In our apinion during the vear the ( ompany has not entered ingp 4By nan-cash transactions withi
Directors or persons connected with its direciors, and lienee provisions of sechion 192 of the
Companies Aci, 2013 are nat appiicable 1o the Company.

xvi. (al In our opinion, the Compuny is nog required o be registered nnder secion 4548 of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Henee, reporiing under clawse 3oavidag (hiand o) aftheCirder 15
nat applicahle,

(B In our apinion, there is po COIC Ivesiment company within the Group tas defined i the Caore
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank} Dircctions, 2016} and aceordingdy veporting under cluse
3vidd) of the Order js non applicakle,

il The Company has incurred cash Josses amounting to s 26201 during the fimameinl vear covered
Py our audit and amounting e Ke 17,050 in the immediately preceding finaucial v,

xiii,  There has been no resipnation of the statuory auditors of the Company durig the VORE,

¥IX.  Onthe basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of finuncial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, ather mnformation decompanying the financial staterments and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management Plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumprions, nething has come 10 our attention, which canses ys 10
believe that any material uncertainly exists as on the date of (he atdit report indicating tha
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities cxisting &L the date of halunce shewt as and when
they fatl due within a period of one vear from the balance sheet date: We. hower ef, state tha this
i Not an asswrance as to the future viability of the © ampany. We furtherstate that our reparting is
based an the facts up to the date of the audit report and we nefihor give any guaraniee nor any
assurance that gll Hahilities falling due within a period of ue vear from the balance sheet date,
will get discharped by the Company as and when thes fall due.

XX, In our opimion, The Company is not required 10 comply with requirements 1owards Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR ) as provided under second proviso o sub-section (5] and sub section 6
of Section 135 of the Companies Agt, Aceordingly, reparting under elause 3xxdia) and { b of the
Order is not applicable far the year,

For SEN & RAY
Chartered6 Accountanis
(Firm’s Registration No. M3 MTE)

Pinsd jor pakits

Binod Kr. Mahato

{Partuer)

Membership No.313822
LDIN-23313 822BGOYOMES 46
Place: Kolkata

Date: April 24, 2023
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LSHA MARTIN FOWER AND RESOURCES LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st Mareh, 2023

(AL smount= in Be, hundreds)

: 3 As at 315t March, Asoat 31st Mar.
Rote No 2023 2022
Aot Amount
ASSETS
Mon - current Assels - -
Current Assets
Firancial Assels
Cash and Cash Lguivalents 3 L6354 1,789
1,654 1,789
Total assels 1,654 1,789
EQUITY AND LTIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 4 5.000 5,000
Chher Equity
Chher Beserve 5 (3,682} {33751
Equity attributable to Equity Share holders of the Company 1,318 1,625
Mon - current Liahilires - z
Current Liabilitics
Financial Liabililies fi = .
Oriher Current Liabilities 7 336 164
RET 164
TOTAL 1,654 1.789
Mote :

1. Related 1o Corporate information
2. Significant Accounting policies

Note 1 to 17 annexed to and Torming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023 and the Statement of Profil

& Laoss for the period ended on that date.
As peraur report of even date,

For M/s SEN & RAY

Firm Registration No. 303047E
Charlered Accountants

Pyinpatd Kr- ;W

Binod Kr. Mahato
Partner

Membership No, 313822
Place: Kolkata

Dated; 24042023

dars-

D.J.Basu
Director
DIN: 024598037

Shampa Ghosh Ray
Dircctor
DIN: 07709378




USHA MARTIN POWER AND RESOURCES LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss Tor the vear ended 31s1 March, 2023

(Al amounts in Rs. hundeeds)

Parifitkes Mute | For the vear ended | For the vear ended
Moo | 31st March, 2023 | 31st March, 2022
Aot Amount

Revenue from operations - L
Other Ineome i =
Total Income - z
Expenses

{(Mher Bapenses ] 307 263
Total Expenses 307 203
Profit/{loss) before tax from continuing operations (307 (2063)
{1} Current Tax paveblefincluding tax related to carlier year years) - -
Total tax expense = 5
Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing operations (307) {163
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the period, net of tax - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period, net of tax (307) {263)
Profit /(loss) for the period
Earning per share (in INIR)

Basic, computed on the basis of profil{loss) attributable 1o equity

helders of the parent 9 hat) {0.53)

[¥iluted , compuied on the basis of profit/{loss) attributable to

eyquily holders of the parent (061 {0.53)

Note 1 to 17 annexed to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023 and the Statement of Profit &
Loss for the period coded on that date.

Agper our report of even date.

For M/s SEN & RAY

Firm Registration No. 303047
Charlered Accountants

Pinoel v Mol & — -

Binod Kr. Mahato Shampa Ghosh Ray .. Basu
Pariner Dhrector Director
Membership No, 313822 DIM: 07705378 [3IM: O2495037

Flace: Kolkata
Dated: 24/04/2023




LSHA MARTIN POWER & RESOLURCES LIMITLED

Cash Flow Sratement for the vear ended 3161 Marel, 2023

AAl anoumts in My I'!l:l_n_rh'i'_llﬂ

T
For the year For the vear
Particnlars ended 311 erbed 3151
March, 2023 March, 2022
A |Cash Flow from Operating Activitics o
rofit/(Loss) before Taxation (307) 120370
Adjustmens for:
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (307) {263)
Changes in Working Capital:
Tnerease{—)Decrease(-) in Trade Pavahles = .
Inereased+)/ Decreasel-) in Other Current Liabilities 172 100
172 100
Drect tax Taid -
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (135) (163)
B. |Cash flow from Investing Activities
Met Cash Generated vsed in Investing Activities - i
C. |Cash Flow from Financing Activities
[Deposit Received " 4
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities - -
Mel Imerease/(Decresse} in Cash & Cash Equivalents during the 135 "
preriod ka3 Ll
. |Cash and Cash Equivalents ai the beginning of the year 1.789 1.952
Cash and Cash FEguivalents at the end of the period 1,654 1.780

Muote: The above cash fow statement has been prepared m under the indirect method as set cut in the Indian Accounling

standard- 7 on the cask flaw Statement preseribed under the Companies Act 20173 of India
Thisia the Cash flow Statement referred to in our repert of even date

For M/s SEN & RAY
Firm Repgistration No. 303047F
Chariered Accountants

Pinoed iv . Wl p b T

Binod Kr. Mahato
Prartner

Membership No, 213822
Place; Kolkata

Dated: 24/04/2023

Shampa Ghosh Ray
Director
DIN: DTTH3TE

pis>

L1 Basu
LDirector
DTN 2498037




USHA MANTIN POWER AND RESOLRCES LIMETED

Statement of Claoges in Eguit

(AN poeowats in Ms, hondreds)

>

Equiry Sharve Capital (Rouity shares of Rs 10 el dssied, subseribed and fully paid) So o] Shure Amanrt (in
Bundreeds)
Shares ootstanding as at 31.03,2024 S04 A0
Changes in equity share capital due woprior perod tems -
Hestated balance &) the beginang of the cumren? reporting perad -
LChangrs in eqoity share capilal dounng the e - -
Shares outstonding as a1 11.03.20122 Sl AdH) & (M
Changes inequity share capital dae o prion periad items - =
Eestated balonve at the beginning of the current repeming peticd - -
Chatngzes in equaty share capital doding e vear - .
Sharcs outstanding as a1 30,03,2023 S0, (HIEH 5,001
Altributable to the equity holders of the parent
Reseryves and
Hems of OCI
Surplus
Equity eomponcnt
Particulars of compeund (rher Bems of Vatal
financial ; Oilser b
HRetained earnings .
nstruments Comprehensive
Inecome

As at Ist April 2022 5000 {3,375} 3 1,625

Frofit for the pennd B {307 ) - {307}

CHher comprehensive (eame - z
T'ntal comprehensive ineeme SN (3,682 1,315

Dnvadends £ = %

lransfer 1o setained eumings 3

Adry other change (e be speeitided ) =

Acguisition of a suhsidiany -

Avyuisition of non-conmraliing interests - -
As at 31st March, 2023 S0 {3.683) - 1,314

For M/s SEMN & RAY
Firm Registration No. 303047E
Charfered Accountants

Prriocd 567+ M pLla G

Binod Kr. Mahato
Fartner

Membership Mo, 313822
Flace: Kolkata

Dated: 24042023

Sharnpa Ghosh Hay
Dhirectur
3% OT709378

ot

Dhirector
DIN: 02408027




USHA MARTIN POWER & RESOURCES LIMITED

Notes Forming part of the Financial Statement

2}
a)

b)

)

d)

£

)]

GENERAL INFORMATION, SIGNIFICAN T ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND SOTES TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AS ON REPORTING DATE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Lishy

Martuy Fower amd Resources Limited ("UMPRI") ) 45 a Public Levdted Company domizileal i India and incomorded sader the
JHITA ]

aronisinng of Companics Act TUSE o undecaking senemcion and distirihition of power. The netivities are vel oosian, UMPRL 158 whollv

i I Eg )

owned subaidiary of Uska Martin Limiced.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policics

Basis of accounting and preparation of fnancial statements

The finsmeinl statements of the Compamy have been prepared in secordance with the Guenerally Accepled Accounting Princigles in Trudia
{Inelian GAAP) and IND A5 [as spplicable) to comply with the Accounting Standands spacificd under Section 132 of the Compaties Avt,
2003, readd with Rule 7 of the Companies (Aceounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (*he 2013 Act™)/
Companies Act, 1956 ("the 1956 Act™), as applicable. The linameial statements bave heen prepared on acerual hasis under the historical cost
canvention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparetion of the finaneial statements are consistent with thase Sllewed in the previons
year

Al ussets and lisbilities have been classificd as current or non-curent as per the Company’s normal operating evele and other eriteria sel aut
m the Schedule 1M1 to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquizition of assets for
pracessing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has asceramed jts operating cvele as 17 months for the [T

of current or non-current classification of assets and lighilites,

Lise of estimaites

The prepuration of the financial staterments in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to make estimares and AFSULMPLONE
considdersd in the reported amounts ol assets and liabilities (meluding comtingent ahilities) and the reporled meome and expenses durind
the perind. The Management belicves that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future
results could differ due to these estimares and the differences hetween the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in

which the results sre known § materialise,

Revenue Recognition
Incisme and expenditure are recagnised on accruzl basis unless otherwise stared,

Employees Benefit
Accounting standard (AS) 15 (revised 2005) 15 applicable far the company but there is no employee in the corpamy; hence na provision for
employes benefits has been provided in the aceounis.

Taxation
Current tax is the amoun| of tax pavable on the taxahle income for the year as determined in accordence with the pravisioms of the income

Tax Act, 196].
Deferrd tax s recognised subject to the considerstion of prudence in respeet of of deferrad lax assets, on tinng difference, being the
difference between taxehlz income and accounting income that originate in the ane peried and ciapuble of reversal in Gne or mare

suhsexjuent periods and is measured using fax rates and laws that bave heen enacred or substantively enacted by the balence sheet.

Earning Per Share:
The basic Eatning per share (EFS) s computed by dividing the net profil afier tax for the year attribitahle to equity sharcholders by the
weighted wvermge number of equity shares issued during the period.

Provision & Contingent Liahilities:
A provision is recognised when the Company has a presenl obligation as a resull of past cvents and it 35 probable that an outlow of

resonrees will be required to setile the obligation in respect of which & reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement
benefits) are not discounted & their present value and are determined based on the hest estimate required o settle the abligalion at the
Balance Sheet date, These are reviewed at each Belance Sheet date and adjusted o reflect the current hest estimstos, Contingent Hahilitics
arc diselosed in the Notes. =
Prior period and extraordinary items and Changes in Aceounting Policies i)

Prior period and extraordinary items and Changes w accountmg Policies having material impact o G
disclosed | #




USHA MARTIN POWER AND RESOURCES LIMITED

Notes to Balance Sheet

(AN gmounts in Ks, hundreds)

Note Particulars Asat 3Ist [ Asat 31st Mar,
No. March, 2023 2022
Amuount Amount

Non - current Assets

Total - Other Non-Current Assets - 5
Total Non-current Assets - -

Current Assets
3  |Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Bank Balances-In curment accounts 1,654 1,789
Total Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,654 1,789
Total Current Financial Assets . 1,654 1,789
Total L‘.urrc;t Assets B ] 1,654 1,789
Total Assels 1,654 1,784
Equity and Liabilities
4 |Equity
Authorised
100000 no of Equity Shares of Re 10 each 10,000 10,000
Isgsued Subscribed and Paid-up
Equity Shares
50000 no of Eguity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,000 5,000
Total S000 5,000

(a) Details of shares held by sharcholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate equity shares
in the company:
Usha Martin Limited (Number of Shares) S0,000 50,000
Y holding 100.00%; 100.00%,
(b) Terms ! rights attached lo equity shares

The company has only one class of equity share having par value of Rs. 10/ per share. Each
shareholder is eligible lor one vote per share held.




USHA MARTIN POWER AND RESOURCES LIMITED

Notes to Balance Shect

(Al amounts in Ky, hundreds)

Mole
™,

— Asat 31st | Asat 31st Mar,
‘ March. 2023 2022
(¢} Beconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the heginning and st the end of the
reporting period
Equity Share Capital (Equity shares of Rs 10 each ,
o i Sumber of shares | Amount in hundreds
issued, subseribed and fully paid)
As at 31sit March, 2021 St 5,000
Changes in equity share capital due to prior petiod items - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting
period = d
Changes in equily share capital during the vear - =
As at 31st Mar, 2022 20,000 5000
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period items - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting
period £ 2
Changes in equity share capital duning the year - .
As at 31st March, 2023 S ) 5,000

(d) During the period of five vears immediately preceeding the Balance Sheet date, no shares
were allotted for consideration other than in cash or by way of bonus shares and no shares were

hought back.




P UTHE BYS() JO J[eyaq Uo s1spjoyareys [enplaipul Aq pay 94,71°0 Sulpnjout,

001

000°0<

+PANWIL | UIB BYS]]

ABJ4 ) Sulnp I5UEY ¢,

SLIELYS [B10] JO o

SIABLYS JO 0N

JWEL 0o g

ON §

TTO0TC0 1€ 3E sk suajowoad Aq pjay saaeyy

pOMWIT UIMEL\ BYS[] JO J[BYOq UO SIDP[OYaIRYS [EnpLAIpUI G PJoY 94,710 Sutpn|oul,

001

000708

PRI UILIRJA RS

l

1ead ay) SuLinp asuey’) o

SAABIS [€J0) JO 9,

S2LERy JO 0N

JUWEU f2]0WoL]

ON S

€TOTE0° 1€ 3¢ s saajowoad Kq pay sadeys

(2)




USHA MARTIN POWER AND RESOURCES LIMITED

Notes to Balance Sheet

(Al amounts in Ks, hundreds)

MNote
Mo,

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2023

As at 31st Mar.
2022

{All amounts in Be hundreds)

5 Other Equity As at 3st Asat st
e g March, 2023 Mar, 2022
Other Reserves
Retained Farnings
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Toss

Balance as at the beginning of the vear (3,375) (3,112

Profit/{ Loss) for the period (307} (263}
Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans =

Change in Revaluation Surplus
Total (3.682) (3.375)
Toial Equity 1,318 1.625

6 |Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liahilities m 5
Totul Finaneial Liabilities-Current - e

7 |Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

Others 336 164
Toial - Other Current Liabilities 336 164
Total Curreni Liabilities 336 164
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,654 1,784




LSHA MARTIN POWER AND RESOURCES LIMITED

Notes (o the Statement of Profit and Loss

(Al amaunls in Bs, hundredy)

Purticulbars

For thie yeur endid 215t
Murch, 2023 |

For the yem ciided
3151 Mareh, 2022

Anunl

Amount

#  Oher Expenses

Foates and 1ases = &
Auditors Remuneration Al an
Feview lees a0 EH|
Miscellancous expenses 230 20
Total expenses 7 161

g Computatien of Earaing Per Equity Share (Hasie and Diluted) (in INK)

For the year ended 315t

Foe the year ended

Particular
Maurch, 223 30st March, 2022

Total Clomprehensive Incoins for the period (307 (283
Less : Dividend on Preference Shares _
Less | Dividend Tax thereon 2
a) Toral Comprehensive Incowne for the period from
continuing operations (407 (263]
by Murmber of Equity Shares of Ra 10/ each S0,000 S0,00n
o) Bagic Earning £ {Loss) per Byt Share [{a341]

; B k-As) pa S lt2)40)] {.81) 53]
u} Dilistive Potential Bguity Shares :
e} Diluted Earming ¢ {Loss) Per Bouity Share 1.61) {137

10 Bemuneration to aoditors comprises of :

For the vear ended 3151

Fuor the vear ended

Farticolar
March, 2023 31st March, 2022
stanwary Andit Fees 20 1l
Limited Beview Fees A an
Total: B0 1




USHA MARTIN POWER AND RESOURCES LIMITED

Motes (o Balunce Sheet
11 &) Timancial instruments by cadegary

LA wersunts in Hs. hundreds)

Avat A1se Marck, 2023

Asat 31s Mar, 2022

!U:lh- al valeation

Fair value
thiraugh
pradic and
sy

Amortised
cosl

Tatal
carrying
virhur

Tzl fair
valug

Tair value
thirough
prelil amnd
lass

Armnrtised
cost

Tatal
careying
value

Tutal tair
vitlue

Fimancinl aserts
Inveshments
I'mde eceivables
Cash and ceh sguivalanls
Cither bank halances
lnans
Denvalives

Mher sancial assels meluding denvatrves
Total finuncial asscts

Fimancial lahilities

Bomowings (moluding current maturities)
I'tasie pavahles

Drerivatives

CHleer Duanciil Babalities

1,654

1.654

1654

1,654

1,054

I05d

[

1,789

Tutnl financial liabilitics

The following cxplains the jedgements and eshmates made in determining the fai values of the financial instruments that are recommised and

amegsured al G valee through protit and foss, To provide ae wdication about the relizhiling ofthe inputs wsed in determiming fair vatog, e Compeny
hes classificd s financial invesunents inio the three fevels preseribed under the aocouming standard;
11 B} Fair value meazorement hicrarchy for assets and liahilities
Financial agseis and liabilities measured at fair value at 31st March, 2023

Leved 1 Level 2 1evel 3 Total
Fimancial asseis
Investnents = - :
Dervative financial azsels 5 .
Financial liahilities
Derivative fomncial Labilities - - =3 -
Financial assels and liabilities measured at Tair valoe af 31s March, 2022
Fevel | Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets
Investnents

Financial linbilities
Drerzvative Anancal liahilitics

Motes :

The Corapany wses the following kierarchy for determming and for disclosiog the Geir value of Anancial mstruments by visluston techniques ;

Eovel 1 hicrarchy imctudes financial instrumnents measured using queted Pnces in active markets for identenl assets or lishilities
Fewel 2 erarchy includes the fan value of Anancial mstruments that are ot fraded o an active market (for cxample, over-the counter derivatives)

and the fair value s determuned vsing valuation lechniques whick maximise the use of observable murkel datz and v as litle gz pussthle on entiry-

specific estimates. [Call sipnificant inputs required 1o fair value an metrument are ohservable, e destroment 15 meleded 0 level 2,
I ewe ar more of the sirmificant mpuacs 1= not based on chservable macke! data, the instrument is included i level 3.

There are no tansfers between levels |oand 2 duiing the vear, The Comparys policy is 10 ecopnise tmnsfrs into and mansfers ool of fuir value

hicrarchy kevels as at the end of e reparting period,




MNotes to the financial statenients

PAlbamaunds in Ba ndreds)
IO Financial visk nanazement eljectives wnd policies
Risk management Teamework

The Company s -board of dineciors bas overel) responsitiline for the caabhshmenl and oversialht ol the Cor e s sk ame
heard nf direstozs g tespossible Tue devecoping and montonng Gz Company's fiss wepszement polizies
Ihe hoard of divcernrs i

wmenl ramevwetk. The

nlils ] priclyse

e ik amits snd conttol and wonin pisks and
EnE activitics

The: Company’s aclivities expese 1l te morked risk, kguidity risk and eredil risk which are measered, monioed and mangged woehide By the
principbes of sk managsemen

¢ risks fuved by the Company, o s spperop
adherence welnmits and are reviewed tepularh 1o retizo shanpss nomarkss ¢

{a) Credit risk

Credil sk refers 4o the risk of financial less thal may arise from courterparty failece on s contractual obligliens resulting in financial
lozs 1o the Company. Credit nsk encompasses both the direet risk o’ delaull and the risk of deteriaration of cralitworthines as well as
COncentration risks.

The company 15 vel W start 115 business operations, Hence the same i nol ssposod o credit risk.

{b) Liquidity risk

The Company has liquidity risk monitoring processes covesing shorl-term, mid-term and long-tenn funding, Liguidity nsk is managed
through mamtaining adequate smaint of committed credit facilities and Joan funds, Management repulorly menilors projected and scoal
cash flow data, analyses the repayment schedules of the existing financial asses and Hahilities and pertorms antinal detailed budgeting
procedurss conpled with rolling cash flow forecasis,

The contractual maturities of the Company's fiaancial labilities are presented below:-

Contractual cash Mows

A=t March, 2023 Less than 1 Above § Total
1-3 years 3-8 vears
Year YEATS

Mon=derivative financizl Habilitics
Borrowings {including cumrent maturitios ) 3 = 5 _

Trade pavables - : z E :

Oiber Onancisl labilities & x - i =

Denvetive financial liabilicies . - 2 i -
Tutal - - = 1 =

Contractual cash fTows

31st Muareh, 2022 l.ess than 1 Ahove ¥ Total
-3 years 3-8 years
year yeurs

Mun-denivative financial liabilities

Borrowings (including current maturites | " " e R =

Trads puyables - - . N .

Orther financial liabilities A - - . R
Drerivative financial liabilities i : = - _

Total . - : = =

{e) Market risk
Markel risk 15 the risk that the fair value of future casl flows ofa Guancial mstrument will flucmate becavse of chanpes in market prices.
The company is el 1 startits husiness operations, Henee the same is ol yved exposed 1o merkel tisk,

Derivative financial instruments
The Company halds no derivative financial instnerment as on the reporting Date. Hence the company i not exposed o the said sisk.

{c.2) Interest rate risk

Intesest rute sk is measursd by wsing the cash Oow sensilivity for changes in variable interest raes, Any mirvement i the referasce rats
could have an mpact on the Company's cash flows as woll as costs. The Company has no interest bearing Babilities as om the halance
sheset dute.




(.3 Commadity price risk

Fhe ooy s yetwstinn e busioess operaiiens, Henesthe sgng i nel eapased wecommenlity price rrgk

{d). Derivative Financial Ingroments
The eompany has netther sequired nor possess gnv derivative linaocial msiromeenis gy on the Balance sheet date, Henee thie o I LS
nel erpesec fo e saed rish.

o) Capitl manasgement

T the purpose of the Company s capital menagement, capiial inelodes sssued equiny capital and ofler ety The Company’s primary
cupital inznapement objertives are to easure s ability 1 continoe as @ pome condern and o optimdee the cost ol capilal o ardsr 1o
enhance valoe b sharchalders,

The Company manapes its capital strocture and miskes adjusinents ot o and when requered. T'o maintais or ad;est the canital struceurs,
tha Company may pay dividend or repay debis, maise new debe or issus new shases, The Crampany monitars capital USing a gearing ratin,
which i met debn divided by tolal capital plos nel debt. Mo major changes were made in the ehivetives, polizics or processes Tur
managing capilal during the period ended 31t March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022 respectively. The Company includes within net deh,
interazt bearing boans and hormowdngs, Jess cash and cash equiviients.

The tollowmng dable summanses the cepifal of the Company

(AN amounts in s hundreds)
Asat 3lst
Purticulars March, As at 31t
2its Mar, 2022
Cash ant cash equivatents 1,634 1,78%
Other bunk balances - .
Total Cash {u) 1,654 1,784
Mon - curreot borrowings = -
Current homawings i i
Current matorities of Tong-term horrosangs - -
Total borrowings (b - -
Net debt (¢ = h-a) (1,654) (1,785)
Total equity 131K 1,625
Total capital (eguity + net debi) (d) {336) (10d)
Coruring ratin {oid) 5 11




[2  Rclated Party

{a) Lol Helnte:d Parties and Relation=hin

Cutegorivs uf related parts Namwes of felated parties
[Hreciom 1o e Plenbd et Baso
I M Devadip Bhowanl
T Mis, Blampa Crhosh Ray
Felatives of Directors . M, Sumana Basu
2. MroAmar Krishma Hese
3. Moz Sunity Basu
4. Mr Ject Baso
S, Mroeep Basy
I. MrTathagata Hay
2. I HEK Ghesh
A0 Mrs. Manjulika Ghosh
w. Mr, Tiwil Ghosh
Lo Mz Mouzsini Bhiewmik
A Late Prantosh Bhcwinik
3 Late Bandana Bhowmk
4 Mr R Bhewmik
3 Mra Laliz Mukherjes
A privace limited compasy o which a director 1= a directon Bhurat Mincx Private [imited
Mame of Fulblic Company i wlhick o director is o director and WA
bold along with hisBer relatives relatives holds moee fhan two
Hokling Company Ulehie Martin | amited
Subsidianes of Holding Company (ineloding step down 1. 1M Cables Lid,
subsiliaries} 2. Dharat Mincy Py, Etd
3 Gustay Wolf Speciatine Cords 1ad,
4 Usha Matin Internutzona! 1td
3. Brumton Wolf Wire Ropes FZCOO:
&, Usha Martin Americas Ine,
P Lisha Siam Sieel Indestries Fublic Company Lid
8. Usha Martin Singapore Pre, Lid
% Usha Martin UK Lid.
Tl Buropean Monagemsnt & Marine Comaoration Lid,
1L Brunden Shaw LK o,
12 De RuiterStaalkabel] BV,
13, Llsha Marmin Furope BV
14. Usha Martim Italia S.rd.
15, Usha Martn Avstralia Pre Lid,
I6. Usha Martin Vietnam Company Lid
17, I'T Usba Marin Indonesia
18, Ulsha Martin Chane Company L,
(B Transacticas with Related Parties Wil

3l Mazch, 2023 315t March, 2072
Ralance opistanding = =

13 There are no Micre, small and medium enterprises 1o whosm the company owes docs,
14 Fgures in brackels show Mepalive balances.
15 Figures ure rounded off to nearest bundred rupees,




YR JUALUNSALE Lo wmay )
YN W padogdueg ede SOXED PUE S0 210jag Sunueg patodws [epdey ue wmay ()
Wi W HI[BY 12N JEJOL,] Jap] Oed ;mguoad 135 (1]
VA VI [ender Funpom Sa[EL 12N OTFEL JaALIng [Bidea jas] (1)
Wi Vi  Se|EaAR 2pE] #FRIRAY SISEN[AING AL N oppEl Jaademng sajgeied apel] (3)
W V| algrataney sjuniany Fay S3[BY UPAID 19N Q1R IBA 0L S2|gealacay spud] ()
vl Y AiyUnal] afaay 52[Es 30 Plos spood jo o) DERS JBAOUIT AJOLERAU] {2)
VI VN Zmbg LA g1 oty Anbg wo unge (p)
S ARpUlRsEYY FFEI2AY| PUDPLAN] 2OUDIATAL] — SANG) IR SHI0S 1]
VN VN DAL 1G] PAALIS WP JOJ SpEEAT STUILLEY DUFy] SFRI3A07) 92A838 1J430] (2}
B VI WAl Aunbap s Japjogaleyy WP B o0y Ajnbg-)gag ()
VRLILER | IR UL 2SBS0 Ll SATUJIGRIT JUEALINT 1385y JWAIIN) GHE AT (2]
FIWHEIEA JO] UOSEIY IT=1TAd| £T-7TA4 LTI Y| A0JELIUN] DHEY|

SISAJEUY OUEY Y]




17

Dhhes Sratoessy Inlermation

v The Cempare Sootal Tase any Boan praperty, where amy proceesding s heen ontsied o pending acnst the
Leampany G nolding ane Bena propery

cilb s Compans demat hive sy trensacions with companies stk olf)

gl The Clompany do vt Towe any cliarges wsatistaction which s yer 1o he registered with ROC bevord the staioras
porind.

(evkhe Cimnany have net traded e invested i Cryplo curresey e Virtaal Cermeney: during the finane sl vean

(v The Company have not advanced or lnaned o investold Tunds e any ofier persanis) or enficgdca), Inehading foredzm
entilies (ntermedianes) with the understanding bt the Intevmediae shull

(i} diveetly erandivectly lend or invest inather persons or eatines ddeiiled o any manner whatsnever by o o belal?
uf the companye (U maste Benehicianes) or

(o e amy puaraniee, security o the ke 0o on behalt of the Ultimae Bereloianes
¥ E : ¥

[viy  The Company have nol recetved any fund from any person(s! e entitylies), includizg Forem entitios {Funding
Farty b witli the uirdersianding {whether tecorded in woiting or cthereize) thar the Company shall

fal direetly orindircethy lend o invest in other persons or endilies identified in any manner whatssever by or on hehelf
of the Funding Farte [LUltimate Beneficiaries) or

(tpmovide any puarantee, security or the ke on Belali of the Ultimele Beneficianes,

ivity  The Composy bave ool any such transaction which 13 not recorded 1o the buoks of scoounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as ncorme durine e year i the tax sssesaments under the lncome Tax Aot 1961 (such as,
acarch orsurvey or any other relevant provisions of e Income Tax Act, 1061

Mote 1 to 17 annexed to and forming part of the Belance Sheet as at 3s0 Mareh, 2023 and the Statement of

Profit & Loss for the period ended on that date,

Ag per oo repoerl o even dite.

For M/ SEN & RAY

Firm Registration Mo, 303047
Chanered Accountants

Breot K- f“'LaM @/' L}kw

Binod Kr. Mahato Shampa Ghosh Ray D Basu
Partner Dhizestor Iircotor
Membership N, 313522 DIM: 07700374 DIN: 02498037
Place: Kolkata
Dated: 24/04/2023




Company Registration No. 02928464 (England and Wales)

USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023



USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors

Company number

Registered office

Auditor

Mr R Jhawar
Mr A Sanyal

Mr D B Gartner
T Gangopadhyay
Mr S Saha

02928464

Sandy Lane
Worksop
Nottinghamshire
United Kingdom
S80 3ES

Azets Audit Services

Titanium 1

King's Inch Place
Renfrew
Renfrewshire
United Kingdom
PA4 8WF

(Appointed 13 June 2022)
(Appointed 13 June 2022)




USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

CONTENTS

Strategic report

Directors' report

Directors' responsibilities statement

Independent auditor's report

Profit and loss account

Statement of comprehensive income

Balance sheet

Statement of changes in equity

Notes to the financial statements

Page

10

11

12-19




USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The directors present the strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Fair review of the business

The operating results and financial position of the company for the year can be seen in the annexed financial
statements.

The above represent the key financial performance indicators that management utilise to monitor the company.
However, given the straightforward nature of the business, the Directors are of the opinion that analysis using non
financial KPI's is not necessary for an understanding of the development, performance and position of the business.

Further information regarding the business performance, development and position, in the context of Usha Martin
Limited group as a whole, is provided within its annual report which does not form part of this report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

As for many businesses in this market, the environment in which the company operates continues to be challenging.
The market remains highly competitive, with some volatility of raw materials prices constricting margins. In order to
mitigate this risk, necessary action is being taken to improve the supply chain. Indications are that the market will
continue like this for the foreseeable future.

Future outlook

The Directors are confident that despite the prevailing difficult sector conditions & geopolitical turmoil the company
will maintain and grow its market share and aims to remain profitable. Wherever necessary, the company will
consider capital expenditure to enhance operating performance. The strength of our parent company, as well as our
close and transparent customer and supplier relationships, puts the company in a strong position to continue to
grow and move forward.

Research and Development

We continue to invest in the design and implementation of new technology in order to enhance our production
systems and techniques. The Directors regard this investment as essential to the continuing success of the
company.

Employees Training and Development

We have consistently sought to recruit and retain the best employees in our market place. Particular attention is
given to the training and career development of employees with a view to encouraging them to play an active role in
the development of the company. Members of the management team regularly visit divisions and discuss matters of
current interest and concern to the business with members of staff.

The company is committed to a policy of recruitment and promotion on the basis of aptitude and ability without
discrimination of any kind.




USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Director's Duties
The Directors of the company, as those of all UK companies, must act in accordance with a set of general rules.

These duties are detailed in section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2006 which is summarised as follows:

A director of a company must act in the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the
success of the company for the benefit of its shareholders as a whole and, in doing so have regard (amongst other
matters) to;

* The likely consequences of any decisions in the long-term;

* The interests of the company’s employees;

* The need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

* The impact of the company’s operations on the community and environment;

* The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
» The need to act fairly as between shareholders of the Company.’

The company seeks to ensure that it operates on an ethical and fair basis in a manner that helps foster agreeable
relationships with is customers, suppliers and the wider business community. The company considers and takes
steps where possible to mitigate and reduce the impact of adverse factors that may place unacceptable strain on
valued business relationships. Aligned with this the company strives to set sector leading standards and achieve a
reputation for a high degree of professional business conduct starting with employees through to suppliers,
customer, shareholders and the wider community both locally and beyond.

Likewise, the company has policies in place to remove or minimise any possible adverse impact of the company's
operations on the wider community and environment. The company commits to adhere to and where possible go
beyond all relevant legislation that seeks to protect the community and environment. Details on employee training
and development are given above.

On be alf of the board

r Saha
Director

Date: ......ccooereireeeeceesieee




USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The directors present their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal activities

Usha Martin International Limited is the parent company of a group whose principal activity is manufacturing and
trading in steel wire rope and wire products and related value-added services. The trading is carried out through
business entities in the UK and Europe. Furthermore, it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Usha Martin Limited, a
company incorporated in India.

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 8.

No ordinary dividends were paid during the year . The directors recommend payment of a final dividend of 21 pence
per A ordinary and B ordinary shares totaling £1,240,971.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as
follows:

Mr R Jhawar

Mr S Jodhawat
Mr S Hood

Mr A Sanyal

Mr D B Gartner
T Gangopadhyay
Mr S Saha

Director

Date: .o,




USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.




USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Usha Martin International Limited (the 'company') for the year ended 31
March 2023 which comprise the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the balance
sheet, the statement of changes in equity and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:
* give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of its loss for the year
then ended;
* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit ot
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
« the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
* the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.




USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors' report. We have
nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

the directors were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies
regime and take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the directors' report.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’'s website at: https://
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.




USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above and on the Financial Reporting Council's website, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

We obtain and update our understanding of the entity, its activities, its control environment, and likely future
developments, including in relation to the legal and regulatory framework applicable and how the entity is complying
with that framework. Based on this understanding, we identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. This includes
consideration of the risk of acts by the entity that were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, we designed
procedures which included:

« Enguiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and
claims as well as actual, suspected and alleged fraud;

» Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

« Assessing the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations considered to have a direct material
effect on the financial statements or the operations of the company through enquiry and inspection;

* Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance
with applicable laws and regulations;

= Performing audit work over the risk of management bias and override of controls, inciuding testing of
journal entries and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the business rationale of significant
transactions outside the normal course of business and reviewing accounting estimates for indicators of
potential bias.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected
in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

&MM \/\/\_,\/__

Bernadette Higgins CA (Senior Statutory Auditor) '2,3\ \15
For and on behalf of Azets Audit Services Date: LB

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor Titanium 1
King's Inch Place
Renfrew
Renfrewshire
United Kingdom
PA4 8WF



USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Notes
Administrative expenses
Other operating income
Operating (loss)/profit
Interest receivable and similar income 6
(Loss)/profit before taxation
Tax on (loss)/profit 7

(Loss)/profit for the financial year

2022
£'000

(753)
949
196
16

212

—
o
—

172




USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023
£'000

(Loss)/profit for the year (182)
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year 182)

2022
£000

172

172




USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

Company Registration No. 02928464

£'000

7,060

2022
£'000 £'000
7,060
3,618
121
3,739
(371)
3,368
10,428
28/04/2023



USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Share Capital Profit and Total
capital redemption loss
reserve reserves
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 2021 5,909 1,731 2,616 10,256
Year ended 31 March 2022:
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - 172 172
Balance at 31 March 2022 5,909 1,731 2,788 10,428
Year ended 31 March 2023:
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year - - (182) (182)
Balance at 31 March 2023 5,909 1,731 2,606 10,246

-11 -



USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

11

1.2

Accounting policies

Company information

Usha Martin International Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales.
The registered office is Sandy Lane, Worksop, Nottinghamshire, United Kingdom, S80 3ES.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary
amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £'000.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The principal accounting
policies adopted are set out below.

This company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102, being a member of a group where the parent
of that group prepares publicly available consolidated financial statements, including this company, which are
intended to give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the group.
The company has therefore taken advantage of exemptions from the following disclosure requirements:

- Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’: Presentation of a statement of cash flow and related notes and
disclosures;

These financial statements have been prepared for submission to the parent undertaking, Usha Martin
Limited, a company incorporated in India specifically for the purpose of lodging them with the appropriate
authority in India. These accounts are not the company's statutory accounts.

Except for the fact that investments in subsidiary companies are stated at cost and the accounts do not
consolidate the results of the subsidiaries, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom.

Separate group accounts, which consolidate the results of the company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2023 are submitted to the Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff,
CF4 3UZ.

Going concern

At the time of approving the financial statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus the
directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

The company has considered its stock levels, including goods in transit, along with future sources both from
group and third party suppliers and are satisfied that these will allow adequate supply of goods as required.

The current and future financial position of the group, its cash flows and liquidity position have been reviewed
by the directors. The group is in funds by £4.7m at 31 March 2023 with further finance facilities available. The
directors are confident that the existing funding facilities will provide sufficient headroom to meet the forecast
cash requirements having considered any additional requirements that would be contingent on a downturn in
activity over the same period. The group's continued growth and long-term forecast outlook has provided
further assurance to the directors regarding its financial position.

As such, the directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis.

-12 -



USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

Accounting policies (Continued)

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their
useful lives on the following bases:

Fixtures and fittings 25% reducing balance

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is credited or charged to profit or loss.

Fixed asset investments

Interests in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The investments are assessed for
impairment at each reporting date and any impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the company. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

An associate is an entity, being neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture, in which the company holds a long-
term interest and where the company has significant influence. The company considers that it has significant
influence where it has the power to participate in the financial and operating decisions of the associate.

Entities in which the company has a long term interest and shares control under a contractual arrangement
are classified as jointly controlled entities.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash and cash equivalents are basic financial assets and include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Financial instruments

The company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12
‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the company's balance sheet when the company becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at
transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial assets
classified as receivable within one year are not amortised.

-13 -



USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1

1.7

1.8

Accounting policies (Continued)

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and preference
shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement
constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future
payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial liabilities classified as payable within one year are
not amortised.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at
transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs.
Dividends payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion
of the company.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the profit and loss account because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The company’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting end date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all timing differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax
liabilities or other future taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the timing difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the company has a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the
same tax authority.
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USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1

1.9

Accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs
are required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are
received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Leases

Rentals payable under operating leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged to profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where another more systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leases asset are consumed.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains and losses arising
on translation are included in the profit and loss account for the period.

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The directors are of the opinion that there are no matters of significant judgement and estimation which are
material to the financial statements.

Operating Profit

Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss during the year, except for those arising on financial
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, amounted to a gain of £14,000 (2022: loss £6,000).

Fees paid for non audit services to the company itself are not disclosed because the consolidated accounts
are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.

-15 -



USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

4

Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year was:

2023
Number
Management 6
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
2023
£'000
Wages and salaries 540
Social security costs 65
Pension costs 6
611
Directors' remuneration
2023
£'000
Remuneration for qualifying services 523
Company pension contributions to defined contribution schemes 6
529

Remuneration disclosed above include the following amounts paid to the highest paid director:

2023
£'000
Remuneration for qualifying services 222

Interest receivable and similar income
2023
£'000

Interest income

Interest receivable from group companies 17

2022
Number

()]

2022
£'000

342

2022
£'000

342

342

2022
£000

275

2022
£'000
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USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

7 Taxation

Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the current period
Foreign current tax on profits for the current period

Total current tax

2023
£'000

2022
£'000

13
27

40

The actual charge for the year can be reconciled to the expected (credit)/charge for the year based on the

profit or loss and the standard rate of tax as follows:

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Expected tax (credit)/charge based on the standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK of 19.00% (2022: 19.00%)

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit
Other permanent differences

Foreign tax credits

Losses carried back

Taxation charge for the year

8 Fixed asset investments
Notes

Investments in subsidiaries 9

9 Subsidiaries

Details of the company's subsidiaries at 31 March 2023 are as follows:

2023
£'000

2022
£'000

212

40
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USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

9 Subsidiaries

Name of undertaking Registered office Nature of business

Brunton Shaw UK Limited  United Kingdom Dormant

De Ruiter Staalkabal BV Netherlands Trading in metal and wire
products

European Management &  United Kingdom Dormant

Marine Ltd

Usha Martin Europe BV Netherlands Trading in metal and wire
products

Usha Martin Italia Srl Italy Research and Development

Usha Martin UK Limited United Kingdom Trading in metal and wire
products

10 Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year:

Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other debtors

11 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Corporation tax

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

12 Retirement benefit schemes
Defined contribution schemes

Charge to profit or loss in respect of defined contribution schemes

(Continued)

Class of shares % Held
Direct

held

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

2023
£'000

2023
£'000

458

100
100

100

100

100
100

2022
£'000

2022
£'000

276

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all qualifying employees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the company in an independently administered fund.
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USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

13

14

Share capital

2023 2022 2023 2022

Ordinary share capital Number Number £'000 £'000
Issued and fully paid

A Ordinary of £1 each 2,847,263 2,847,263 5,909 2,847

B Ordinary of £1 each 3,062,125 3,062,125 - 3,062

5,909,388 5,909,388 5,909 5,909

All shares rank pari passu and have equal rights to dividends and share of any distribution of assets.
Ultimate controlling party

Usha Martin Limited, a company incorporated in India, is the ultimate parent undertaking. Copies of the
accounts of the ultimate parent undertaking may be obtained by writing to the Company Secretary at Usha
Martin Limited, 2A, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata 700 071, India.
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USHA MARTIN INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

DETAILED TRADING AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023
£'000 £'000
Other operating income
Management fees receivable 1,167
Administrative expenses
Wages and salaries 7
Social security costs 1
Staff pension costs defined contribution -
Other staff costs 10
Directors' remuneration 523
Directors' social security costs 64
Directors' pension costs - defined contribution
scheme 6
Management charge 488
Rent re operating leases 8
Travelling expenses 47
Legal and professional fees 222
Advertising 2
Telecommunications 1
Entertaining 3
Sundry expenses (2)
Realised exchange loss/(gain) 9
Unrealised exchange loss/(gain) (23)
(1,366)
Operating (loss)/profit (199)
Interest receivable and similar income
Interest receivable from group companies 17
17

(Loss)/profit before taxation - 182)

£'000

342
40

272

80

(4 ; [ G N G,

16

2022
£000

949

(753)

196
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USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The directors present the strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Review of Business
The operating results and financial position of the company for the year can be seen in the annexed financial
statements.

The Directors manage the company's operations on a unified basis with Usha Martin International Limited, its
parent company. For this reason, the Directors believe that analysis using key performance indicators for the
company is not necessary or appropriate for an understanding of the development, performance or position of the
company. Further information regarding the development, performance and position of the business, in the context
of Usha Martin International Limited Group as a whole, is provided within its Report of the Directors, which does not
form part of this report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

From the perspective of the company, the principal risks and uncertainties are integrated with the principal risks and
uncertainties of Usha Martin International Limited Group and are not managed separately. Accordingly, the principal
risks and uncertainties of the group, which include those of the company, are discussed within the group's Report of
the Directors, which does not form part of this report.

Considering the current macro economic situation, the company is exposed to the following risks:

* High volatility of Raw Material & Utility prices amid Geo political situation with on-going Russia — Ukraine
conflict

* Inflation impacting demand and general economic activity

» Supply Chainrisk i.e. The continued supply of materials for production of wire rope and related products.

In order to mitigate this risk, necessary action is being taken to improve the overall supply chain with focus on
leveraging Group capabilities. Indications are that the market will continue like this for the foreseeable future.

Employees training and development

We have consistently sought to recruit and retain the best employees in our market place. Members of the
management team regularly visit divisions and discuss matters of current interest and concern to the business with
members of staff.

The company is committed to a policy of recruitment and promotion on the basis of aptitude and ability without
discrimination of any kind.

Research and development
Directors are expecting to continue their focus on developing more value added products to expand the product
range offered to customers.

We continue to invest in the design and implementation of new technology in order to continuously improve our
production systems and techniques. The directors regard this investment as essential to the continuing success of
the company

Financial instruments

Our financial risk management objectives are to ensure sufficient working capital for the company. This is achieved
through careful management of our cash resources, and by obtaining overdraft and loan finance where necessary.
Other than this, the use of financial instruments is not material for the assessment of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit of the company.




USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Future developments

The Directors are confident that despite the prevailing difficult sector conditions & geopolitical turmoil the company
will maintain and grow its market share and aims to remain profitable, Wherever necessary, the company will
consider capital expenditure to enhance operating performance, The strength of our parent company, as well as
our close and transparent customer and supplier relationships, puts the company in a strong position tc continue to
grow and move forward.

Directors’ Duties

The Directors of the Company, as those of all UK companies, must act in accordance with a set of general rules.
These duties are detailed in section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2006 which is summarised as follows:

A director of a company must act in the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the
success of the company for the benefit of its shareholders as a whole and, in doing so have regard (amongst other
matiers) to:

* The likely consequences of any decisions in the long-term;

* The interests of the company's employees;

* The need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

* The impact of the company'’s operations on the community and environment;

* The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
* The need to act fairly as between shareholders of the Company.’

The company seeks to ensure that it operates on an ethical and fair basis in a manner that helps foster agreeable
relationships with is customers, suppliers and the wider business community. The company considers and takes
steps where possible to mitigate and reduce the impact of adverse factors that may place unacceptable strain on
valued business relationships, Aligned with this the company strives to set sector leading standards and achieve a
reputation for a high degree of professional business conduct starting with employees through to suppliers,

customer, shareholders and the wider community both locally and beyond.
Likewise, the company has policies in place to remove or minimise any possible adverse impact of the company's

operations on the wider community and environment. The company commits to adhere to and where possible go
beyond ali relevant legisiation that seeks to protect the community and environment.

On behalf of the board

Mr 8 Saha
Director



USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The directors present their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the company continued to be that of manufacturing and trading in steel wire rope and wire
products and related value-added services. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Usha Martin International
Limited, a company incorporated in the UK.

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 8.

No ordinary dividends were paid during the year . The directors recommend payment of a final dividend of 33 pence
per share totaling £1,270,500.

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as
follows:

Mr R Jhawar

Mr S Jodhawat (Resigned 15 June 2022)
Mr D B Gariner

Mr S Hood (Resigned 1 July 2022)
Mr A Sanyal

Mr S Ravi

Mr T Gangopadhyay (Appointed 13 June 2022)
Mr 8 Saha (Appointed 13 June 2022)

Auditor
The auditor, Azets Audit Services, is deemed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006.

Energy and carbon report
This report is included in the direcfors report of the holding company, Usha Martin International Limited.

Statement of disclosure to auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditor is unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have taken all the
necessary steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of alf relevant audit
information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that information.

On behalf of the board

Mr S Saha
Director

............................................



USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.




USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Usha Martin UK Limited (the ‘company') for the year ended 31 March
2023 which comprise the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the balance sheet, the
statement of changes in equity and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in

the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:
* give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of its profit for the year
then ended;
* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
* the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
* the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.




USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors' report. We have nothing
to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

* the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

* certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: https:/
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report. :




USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBERS OF USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above and on the Financial Reporting Council's website, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

We obtain and update our understanding of the entity, its activities, its control environment, and likely future
developments, including in relation to the legal and regulatory framework applicable and how the entity is complying
with that framework. Based on this understanding, we identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. This includes
consideration of the risk of acts by the entity that were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, we designed
procedures which included:

» Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and
claims as well as actual, suspected and alleged fraud;

* Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

» Assessing the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations considered to have a direct material
effect on the financial statements or the operations of the company through enquiry and inspection;

» Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance
with applicable laws and regulations;

* Performing audit work over the risk of management bias and override of controls, including testing of
journal entries and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the business rationale of significant
transactions outside the normal course of business and reviewing accounting estimates for indicators of
potential bias.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those
leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected
in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this repont, or for the opinions we have formed.

Bernadette Higgins CA (Senior Statutory Auditor) \ \
For and on behalf of Azets Audit Services Date: Q\%\*l3

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor Titanium 1
King's Inch Place
Renfrew

Renfrewshire
United Kingdom
PA4 8WF




USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023

Notes £'000

Turnover 3 56,313
Cost of sales (43,299)
Gross profit 13,014
Administrative expenses (7,279)
Other operating income 8
Operating profit 4 5,743
Interest payable and similar expenses 6 5)
Profit before taxation 5,738
Tax on profit 7 (1,105)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 4,633

2022
£000

36,870
(31,461)

5,408

(5,027)
10

382

392
(516)

(124)




USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

2023
£'000

4,633

4,633

2022
£'000

(124)




USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023
2023
Notes £'000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 8 17,498
Current assets
Stocks 9 15,085
Debtors 10 14,045
Cash at bank and in hand 3,180
32,310
Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year 1" (14,158)
Net current assets 18,152
Total assets less current liabilities 35,650
Provisions for liabllities
Deferred tax liability 12 1,790
(1,790)
Government grants 13 (162)
Net assets 33,698
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 15 3,850
Profit and loss reserves 16 29,848
Total equity 33,698

2022
£'000

14,236
8,716
2,019

24,971

(12,203)

£000

18,265

12,768

31,033

(1,790)

(178)

29,065

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 23\“\\7"3 and

are signed on its behalf by:

F rml{ 14‘

Mr S Saha
Director

Company Registration No. 03594781




USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Balance at 1 April 2021

Year ended 31 March 2022:
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 March 2022

Year ended 31 March 2023:
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 March 2023

Share Profit and Total
capital loss
reserves

£'000 £000 £'000

3,850 25,339 29,189

- (124) (124)

3,850 25,215 29,065

- 4633 4,633

3,850 29,848 33,698

-11-



USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1.1

1.2

Accounting policies

Company information
Usha Martin UK Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales. The
registered office is Sandy Lane, Worksop, Nottinghamshire, United Kingdom, S80 3ES.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary
amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £'000.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The principal accounting
policies adopted are set out below.

This company is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102, being a member of a group where the parent
of that group prepares publicly available consolidated financial statements, including this company, which are
intended to give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the group.
The company has therefore taken advantage of exemptions from the following disclosure requirements:

- Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows': Presentation of a statement of cash flow and related notes and
disclosures:

- Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instrument Issues’: Interest
income/expense and net gains/losses for each category of financial instrument; basis of determining fair
values; details of collateral, loan defaults or breaches, details of hedges, hedging fair value changes
recognised in profit or loss and in other comprehensive income;

The financial statements of the company are consolidated in the financial statements of Usha Martin
International Limited. These consolidated financial statements are available from its registered office, Sandy
Lane, Worksop, Nottinghamshire, S80 3ES.

Going concern

At the time of approving the financial statements, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus the
directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

The company has considered its stock levels, including goods in transit, along with future sources both from
group and third-party suppliers and are satisfied that these will allow adequate supply of goods as required.

The current and future financial position of the company, its cash flows and liquidity position have been
reviewed by the directors. The company has no borrowings at 31 March 2023 with further finance facilities
available. The directors are confident that the existing funding facilities will provide sufficient headroom to
meet the forecast cash requirements having considered any additional requirements that would be contingent
on a downturn in activity over the same period. The company's continued growth and long-term forecast
outlook has provided further assurance to the directors regarding its financial position.

As such, the directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis.

-12-



USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1.3

1.4

15

Accounting policies (Continued)

Turnover

Turnover is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business, and is shown net of VAT and other sales related taxes. The fair
value of consideration takes into account trade discounts, settlement discounts and volume rebates.

When cash inflows are deferred and represent a financing arrangement, the fair value of the consideration is
the present value of the future receipts. The difference between the fair value of the consideration and the
nominal amount received is recognised as interest income.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer (usually on dispatch of the goods), the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity and the
costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their
useful lives on the following bases:

Freehold land and buildings 2% on cost

Plant and equipment at varying rates on cost

Fixtures and fittings at varying rates on reducing balance
Electronic equipment 25% on reducing balance

Motor vehicles 25% on cost

Improvements to property 20% on reducing balance

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset, and is credited or charged to profit or loss.

Impairment of fixed assets

At each reporting period end date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1.6

1.7

1.8

Accounting policies (Continued)

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to
apply. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost
comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the stocks to their present location and condition.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made for impairment. Any excess of the carrying amount of stocks
over its estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell is recognised as an impairment loss in profit or
loss. Reversals of impairment losses are also recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are basic financial assets and include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Financial instruments
The company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12
‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the company's balance sheet when the company becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at
transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is
measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial assets
classified as receivable within one year are not amortised.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets, including investments in equity instruments which are not subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures, are initially measured at fair value, which is normally the transaction price. Such assets are
subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss, except that
investments in equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair values cannot be measured
reliably are measured at cost less impairment.

-14-



USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each reporting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been affected.
If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

If there is a decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not
exceed what the carrying amount would have been, had the impairment not previously been recognised. The
impairment reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or
are settled, or when the company transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained but control of
the asset has transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and preference
shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the arrangement
constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future
payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial liabilities classified as payable within one year are
not amortised.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially at
transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Derivatives, including interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts, are not basic financial
instruments. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised
in profit or loss in finance costs or finance income as appropriate, unless hedge accounting is applied and the
hedge is a cash flow hedge.

Debt instruments that do not meet the conditions in FRS 102 paragraph 11.9 are subsequently measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Debt instruments may be designated as being measured at fair value through
profit or loss to eliminate or reduce an accounting mismatch or if the instruments are measured and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy.
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USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1.9

1.10

1.12

1.13

Accounting policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the company’s contractual obligations expire or are discharged or
cancelled.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs.
Dividends payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion
of the company.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the profit and loss account because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The company’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting end date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all timing differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax
liabilities or other future taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the timing difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the company has a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the
same tax authority.

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs
are required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are
received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Leases

Rentals payable under operating leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged to profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where another more systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leases asset are consumed.
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USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1.14

1.15

1.16

Accounting policies (Continued)

Government grants
Government grants are recognised at the fair value of the asset received or receivable when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant conditions will be met and the grants will be received.

A grant that specifies performance conditions is recognised in income when the performance conditions are
met. Where a grant does not specify performance conditions it is recognised in income when the proceeds
are received or receivable. A grant received before the recognition criteria are satisfied is recognised as a
liability.

Government grants based on capital expenditure are credited to the profit and loss account over the
estimated useful life of the assets funded. Government grants of a revenue nature are credited to the profit
and loss account in the same period as the related expenditure.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains and losses arising
on translation in the period are included in profit or loss.

Research and development
Research expenditure is written off against profits in the year in which it is incurred, except that the
development expenditure incurred on an individual project is carried forward when its future recoverability can
be reasonably regarded as assured. Any expenditure carried forward is amortised in line with expected future
sales from the related project.

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements
The following judgements (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most significant effect on
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Stock and bad debt provisions

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and selling price less costs to complete and sell. This includes, where
necessary, provisions for slow moving stocks. Calculations of these provisions requires judgements to be
made, including the competitive and economic environment and market trends.

Calculations made in respect of provisions for doubtful debts requires judgement. This judgement is based on
customer base and the economic environment.
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USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

3 Turnover and other revenue

The turnover and profit before tax are attributable to the manufacture, sales and services relating to wire rope

and associated products.

In the opinion of the directors it would be prejudicial to the interests of the group and the company to provide

an analysis of turnover by geographical market.

Other revenue
Grants received

4 Operating profit
Operating profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting):

Exchange differences apart from those arising on financial instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss

Government grants

Fees payable to the company's auditor for the audit of the company's financial
statements

Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Operating lease charges

5 Employees

2023
£000

0o

2023
£'000

80
®)

43

1,311
(12)

131

2022
£'000

2022
£000

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year was:

Production
Administration, sales and distribution

Total

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

2023

Number

107
59

166

2022
Number

105
60

165
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USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

6 Interest payable and similar expenses

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans

7 Taxation

Current tax

UK corporation tax on profits for the current period
Adjustments in respect of prior periods

Total current tax

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences

Total tax charge

2023
£000

2023
£000

1,107
@

1,105

1,105

|
|

2022
£'000

2022
£'000

65
©®)

60

|

456

|

516

The actual charge for the year can be reconciled to the expected charge for the year based on the profit or

loss and the standard rate of tax as follows:

Profit before taxation

Expected tax charge based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
19.00% (2022: 19.00%)

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit

Tax effect of income not taxable in determining taxable profit

Adjustments in respect of prior years

Depreciation on assets not qualifying for tax allowances

Deferred tax adjustments in respect of prior years

Remeasurement of deferred tax for changes in tax rates

Taxation charge for the year

2023
£'000

5,738

2022
£'000

@

®)

12
430

516
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USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

8 Tangible fixed assets

Included with Land & Buildings is £780,000 (2022: £780,000) of property held under long leasehold.

9 Stocks

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress
Finished goods and goods for resale

2023
£000

3,208
1,065
10,812

15,085

{Continued)

2022
£000

2,730
799
10,707

14,236

Included within finished goods and goods for resale is goods-in-transit totalling of £2,775,000 (2022 -

£3,315,000).
10 Debtors
Amounts falling due within one year:

Trade debtors

Corporation tax recoverable

Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

11 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Corporation tax

Accruals and deferred income

2023
£'000

9,923
2,226

700
1,196

14,045

2023
£'000

3,847
7,171

221
2,919

14,158

2022
£'000

1,647
8,868

1,688

12,203

A facility of up to £675,000 has been secured against the property at Kirkhill Industrial Estate, Dyce and the

property at Sandy Lane, Worksop.
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USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

12

Deferred taxation

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the company and movements
thereon:

Liabilities Liabilities

2023 2022
Balances: £'000 £'000
Accelerated capital allowances 1,724 1,724
Revaluations 66 66
1,790 1,790
There were no deferred tax movements in the year.
13 Government grants
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Arising from government grants 162 178

The value of the government grant deferred as at 31 March 2023 is £170,000 (2022 - £178,000). Amounts
due within one year are £8,000 with £162,000 due after one year.

14 Retirement benefit schemes
2023 2022
Defined contribution schemes £'000 £'000
Charge to profit or loss in respect of defined contribution schemes 135 149

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all qualifying employees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the company in an independently administered fund.

15 Share capital
2023 2022 2023 2022
Ordinary share capital Number Number £'000 £'000
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary of £1 each 3,850,000 3,850,000 3,850 3,850

All shares rank pari passu and have equal rights to dividends and share of any distribution of assets.
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USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

16

17

18

19

20

21

Profit and loss reserves

2023 2022
£'000 £000
At the beginning of the year 25,215 25,339
Profit/(loss) for the year 4,633 (124)
At the end of the year 29,848 25,215

Included within total retained earnings above are non-distributable reserves of £529,000 (2022: £513,000).
Financial commitments, guarantees and contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2023, there were bank guarantees held at Barclays Commercial Bank amounting to £92,000
(2022: £40,000) in respect of performance bonds and other obligations.

Operating lease commitments

Lessee
At the reporting end date the company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Within one year 108 130
Between two and five years 434 382
In over five years 5,880 5,888
6,422 6,400

Other financial commitments

The company have entered into forward foreign exchange contracts at the year end totalling £660,000 (2022:
£758,000) in order to mitigate the effect of movements in foreign exchange.

Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption, under the Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland’, not to disclose related party
transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries within the group.

Ultimate controlling party

The company's immediate parent company is Usha Martin International Limited, a company incorporated in
Great Britain and registered in England & Wales.

Usha Martin Limited, a company incorporated in India, is the ultimate parent undertaking. Copies of the
accounts of the ultimate parent undertaking may be obtained by writing to the Company Secretary at Usha
Martin Limited, 2A, Shakespeare Sarani, Kolkata 700 071, India.
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USHA MARTIN UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

22

Financial risk management

The company has exposures to three main areas of risk - foreign exchange currency exposure, liquidity risk
and interest rate risk.

Foreign exchange transactional currency exposure

The company is exposed to currency exchange rate risk due to a significant proportion of its receivables,
payables and operating expenses being denominated in non-Sterling currencies. The net exposure of each
currency is monitored and managed by the use of forward foreign exchange contracts or overdraft facility. The
forward foreign exchange contracts all mature within 12 months.

Liquidity risk

The objective of the company in managing liquidity risk is to ensure that it can meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due. The group expects to meet its financial obligations through operating cash flows. In
the event that the operating cash flows would not cover all the financial obligations, the company has credit
facilities available. The company has no bank borrowings at 31 March 2023 and is in a position to meet its
commitments and obligations as they fall due.

Interest rate risk
The company borrows from its bankers using either overdrafts or term loans whose tenure depends on the
nature of the asset and management's view of the future direction of interest rate.
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De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V.
Sliedrecht

MANAGEMENT BOARD'S REPORT

The management board's report is available at the company's office.
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De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V.
Sliedrecht

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2023
(After proposal appropriation of result)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
€ € € €
ASSETS
Fixed assets
Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings 5.601.453 5.668.969
Machinery 605.019 656.686
Other fixed assets 153.446 139.443
Prepayments of property, plant and
equipment 44.298 13.218
6.404.216 6.478.316
Current assets
Inventories and work in progress
Goods for resale 5.747.884 4.685.743
Receivables
Trade receivables 4.779.547 4.017.681
Receivables from group companies 275.166 36.000
Other current accounts 432.379 269.220
5.487.092 4.322.901
Cash and cash equivalents 1.246.259 518.759
18.885.451 16.005.719

4 Govers Thuis in cijfers sinds 1927



De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V.
Sliedrecht

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued share capital
General reserve

Long-term liabilities

Payables to banks

Short-term liabilities

Payables to banks
Trade payables

Liabilities to group companies
Taxes and social security contributions
Other liabilities and accrued expenses

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

€ €
18.000
11.944.939

11.962.939

2.287.500
225.000
1.444.904
2.161.727
412.615
400.766

4.635.012

18.885.451

€ €
18.000
10.229.945

10.247.945

2.512.500
225.000
1.160.350
1.187.607
308.462
363.855

3.245.274

16.005.719

5 Govers Thuis in cijfers sinds 1927



De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V.
Sliedrecht

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD 01-04-22 UNTIL 31-03-23

Net turnover
Cost of sales
Gross margin

Wages and salaries

Social security charges

Pension contributions

Other staff expenses

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating result
Financial income and expenses
Result before taxation

Taxation

Result after taxation

1-4-2022 / 31-3-2023

1-4-2021 / 31-3-2022

€

27.296.920

-20.266.862

2.392.603
338.228
234.296
661.540
235.345

822.952

€

7.030.058

4.684.964

2.345.094

-78.534

2.266.560

-551.566
1.714.994

€

19.877.759

-13.856.666

2.418.190
298.710
228.321
322.144
246.724

660.346

€

6.021.093

4.174.435

1.846.658

-64.188

1.782.470

-422.210
1.360.260

Govers Thuis in cijfers sinds 1927



De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V.
Sliedrecht

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD 01-04-22 UNTIL 31-03-23

Cash flow from operating activities
Operating result

Adjustments for
Depreciation

Changes in working capital

Increase in inventories

Decrease in trade receivables
Receivables from group companies
Increase in other receivable and taxes and
social security charges

Decrease in other payables

Cash flow from business activities

Interest paid
Income tax paid

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow from investment activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Cash flow from financing activities
Repayments from borrowings

Movements cash

1-4-2022 / 31-3-2023

1-4-2021 / 31-3-2022

Turnover movement cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the begin
Decrease cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end

€ € €

2.345.094

235.345
-1.062.141 -1.247.803
-761.866 92.903
-239.166 6.648
-163.159 2.288
1.389.738 -5689.577

-836.594

1.743.845
-78.534 -64.188
-551.566 -602.398

-630.100

1.113.745

-161.245

-225.000

727.500

518.759

727.500

1.246.259

€

1.846.658

246.724

-1.735.541

357.841

-666.586

-308.745

-168.737

-225.000

-702.482

1.221.241
-702.482

518.759
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De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V.
Sliedrecht

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Entity information

Reqistered address and registration number trade register

The actual address of De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. is Kerkeplaat 10, 3313 LC in Dordrecht, the registered
office of the legal entity is Sliedrecht. De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. is registered at the Chamber of
Commerce under number 23053163.

General notes

The most important activities of the entity

The activities of De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. mainly consist of:

- Import and export of steel wire ropes and the distribution and exploitation of ship equipments;
- Distribution of lifting equipment, ropes and crane pulleys;

- Assembling and manufacturering of steel wire ropes.

Disclosure of going concern

De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. has performed its continuity assessment for the period of twelve months from
the date of preparation of the financial statements and has not identified any events or circumstances
that may cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the accounting
principles applied to the valuation of assets and liabilities and the determination of results are based on
the going concern assumption.

Disclosure of group structure

De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. is part of the Usha Martin group. The head of this group is Usha Martin Ltd,
India. The financial statements of De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. are included in the consolidated financial
statements of Usha Martin Ltd, which are available at www.ushamartin.com.

All legal entities that can be controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced are considered to be a
related party. Also entities which can control the company are considered to be a related party. In
addition, statutory directors, other key management of the company and close relatives are regarded as
related parties.

Transactions with related parties are disclosed in the notes insofar as they are not done under normal
market conditions. The nature, extent and other information is disclosed if this is necessary in order to
provide the required insight.

Disclosure of estimates

In applying the principles and policies for drawing up the financial statements, the directors of De Ruiter
Staalkabel B.V. make different estimates and judgments that may be essential to the amounts disclosed
in the financial statements. If it is necessary in order to provide the transparency required under Book 2,
article 362, paragraph 1, the nature of these estimates and judgments, including related assumptions, is
disclosed in the notes to the relevant financial statement item.

General accounting principles

The accounting standards used to prepare the financial statements

The financial statement is drawn up in accordance with the provisions of Title 9, Book 2 of the Dutch
Civil Code and the firm pronouncements in the Dutch Accounting Standards, as published by the Dutch
Accounting Standards Board ('Raad voor de Jaarverslaggeving').

Assets and liabilities are generally valued at historical cost, production cost or at fair value at the time of
acquisition. If no specific valuation principle has been stated, valuation is at historical cost.
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Disclosure of changes in accounting policies

The applied accounting principles remained unchanged compared to previous year. The comparative
figures are, if required, only adjusted on presentation for comparison purposes.

Conversion of amounts denominated in foreign currency

The financial statement is presented in euros, which is the functional and presentation currency of De
Ruiter Staalkabel B.V.

Transactions in foreign currencies are stated in the financial statements at the exchange rate of the
functional currency on the transaction date. The company is active in the European Union.

The company's transactions are settled in Euros, US-dollars and British Pounds (GBP). US-dollar- and
GBP-transactions concerns purchases and sales. There is currency risk on these currencies.

Operating leases

De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. has lease contracts whereby a large part of the risks and rewards associated
with ownership are not for the benefit of or incurred by the De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. The lease contracts
are recognised as operational leasing. Lease payments are recorded on a straight-line basis, taking into
account reimbursements received from the lessor, in the statement of profit and loss for the duration of
the contract.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include both primary financial instruments, such as receivables and liabilities, and
financial derivatives. Reference is made to the recognition per balance sheet item for the principles of
primary financial instruments.

Accounting principles

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible fixed assets are valued at acquisition costs or production costs plus additional costs less
straight-line depreciation based on the expected life, unless stated otherwise. Impairments expected on
the balance sheet date are taken into account.

Land and buildings

Land and buildings are valued at historical cost plus additional costs or production cost less straight-line
depreciation based on the expected useful life. Land is not depreciated. Impairments expected on the
balance sheet date are taken into account.

Impairment of non-current assets

On each balance sheet date, De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. assesses whether there are any indications that a
fixed asset may be subject to impairment. If there are such indications, the recoverable amount of the
asset is determined. If it is not possible to determine the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined. An impairment
occurs when the carrying amount of an asset is higher than the recoverable amount; the recoverable
amount is the higher of the realisable value and the value in use. An impairment loss is directly
recognised in the profit and loss account while the carrying amount of the asset concerned is
concurrently reduced.

Inventories

Inventories (stocks) are valued at cost price based on the FIFO method or lower realisable value.

The cost price consists of the historical cost or production cost and costs incurred in order to bring the
stocks to their current location and current condition. The production cost includes direct labour and fixed
and variable production overheads, taking into account the costs of the operations office, the
maintenance department and internal logistics.
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De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V.
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The realisable value is the estimated sales price less directly attributable sales costs. In determining the
realisable value the obsolescence of the inventories is taken into account.

Receivables

Receivables are initially valued at the fair value of the consideration to be received, including transaction
costs if material. Receivables are subsequently valued at the amortised cost price. If there is no
premium or discount and there are no transaction costs, the amortised cost price equals the nominal
value of the accounts receivable. Provisions for bad debts are deducted from the carrying amount of the
receivable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at banks and in hand represent cash in hand, bank balances and deposits with terms of less than
twelve months. Overdrafts at banks are recognised as part of debts to lending institutions under current
liabilities. Cash at banks and in hand is valued at nominal value.

Non-current liabilities

On initial recognition non-current liabilities are recognised at fair value. After initial recognition non-
current liabilities are recognised at the amortised cost price, being the amount received taking into
account premiums or discounts and minus transaction costs. This is usually the nominal value.

Current liabilities

On initial recognition current liabilities are recognised at fair value. After initial recognition current
liabilities are recognised at the amortised cost price, being the amount received taking into account
premiums or discounts and minus transaction costs. This is usually the nominal value.

Accounting principles for determining the result

The result is the difference between the realisable value of the goods and services provided and the
costs during the year. The results on transactions are recognised in the year in which they are realised.

Revenue recognition

Net turnover represents amounts invoiced for goods and services supplied during the financial year
reported on, net of discounts and value added taxes.

Revenues ensuing from the sale of goods are accounted for when all major entitlements to economic
benefits as well as all major risks have transferred to the buyer. The cost price of these goods is
allocated to the same period.

Revenues from services are recognized in proportion to the services rendered. The cost price of these
services is allocated to the same period.

Cost of sales

Costs of sales are determined on a historical basis and are attributed to the reporting year to which they
relate.

Government subsidies

Operating subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions for the
subsidies will be met. The subsidies are recorded as income in the profit and loss account in the year in
which the subsidised costs incurred or income was lost.

Expenses of employee benefits

Wages and Salaries, social securtiy charges and pension contributions are charged to the profit and loss
statement based on the terms of employment, where they are due to employees and the tax authorities
respectively.
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Applied policy of pension costs

The company has a pension plan which is implemented by the industry-wide pension fund
‘Bedrijfstakpensioenfonds Metaal en Techniek’ (PMT). The pension plan is a conditional average pay
pension plan with conditional indexation for active and inactive participants. On the balance sheet date
the actual funding ratio of the industry-wide pension fund amounts to 109,6% on 28 February 2023

(31 March 2022: 108,2%). Due to the low funding ratio, the industry-wide pension fund has drawn up a
recovery plan that has been approved by The ‘Dutch Bank’ (DNB). Based on the recovery plan, no
additional measures are required.

Based on the funding regulations, the company is not obliged making additional contributions in the
event of a shortfall in the fund other than through higher future contributions. The company uses DAS
271.3 for accounting of their pension plan. The pension obligations are valued according to the obligation
to the pension provider approach. This approach accounts for the contribution payable to the pension
provider as an expense in the profit and loss account.

Based on the funding agreement it is assessed whether and, if so, which obligations or receivables exist
in addition to the payment of the annual contribution due to the pension provider as at the balance sheet
date. These additional obligations or receivables lead to expenses or revenues and are included in
aprovision or receivable on the balance sheet.

As at the balance sheet date, there are no pension obligations and receivables in addition to the payment
of the annual premium due to the pension provider.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated from the date of initial use over the expected future economic life
of the asset, while taking into account any applicable restrictions with respect to buildings, investment
property, other tangible fixed assets. Land is not depreciated.

Future depreciation is adjusted if there is a change in estimated future useful life. Gains and losses from
the occasional sale of property, plant or equipment are included in depreciation.

Operating expenses

Costs are determined on a historical basis and are attributed to the reporting year to which they relate.

Financial income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognised on a pro rata basis, taking account of the effective interest
rate of the assets and liabilities to which they relate. In accounting for interest expenses, the recognised
transaction expenses for loans received are taken into consideration.

Exchange differences that arise from the settlement or translation of monetary items are recorded in the
profit and loss account in the period in which they occur, unless hedge-accounting is applied.

Income tax expense

Tax on the result is calculated based on the result before tax in the statement of profit and loss, taking
account of the losses available for set-off from previous financial years (to the extent that they have not
already been included in the deferred tax assets) and exempt profit components and after the addition of
non-deductible costs. Due account is also taken of changes which occur in the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in respect of changes in the applicable tax rate.

Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement is prepared according to the indirect method. The funds in the cash flow
statement consist of cash and cash equivalents. Cash flows in foreign currencies are translated at an
estimated average rate. Exchange rate differences, income and expenditure owing to interest and tax on
profits have been included under the cash flow from operating activities.
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De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V.
Sliedrecht

NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET

Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment

Landand  Machinery Other fixed Prepayments Total
buildings assets  of property,
plant and
equipment
€ € € € €
Balance as at 1 April 2022
Cost or manufacturing price 6.186.917 1.501.165 590.683 13.218 8.291.983
Accumulated depreciation -517.948 -844.479 -451.240 - -1.813.667
Book value as at 1 April 2022 5.668.969 656.686 139.443 13.218 6.478.316
Movements
Additions - 73.334 56.831 31.080 161.245
Depreciation -67.516 -125.001 -42.828 - -235.345
Balance movements -67.516 -51.667 14.003 31.080 -74.100
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Cost or manufacturing price 6.186.917 1.574.500 647.513 44.298 8.453.228
Accumulated depreciation -585.464 -969.481 -494.067 - -2.049.012
Book value as at 31 March 2023 5.601.453 605.019 153.446 44,298 6.404.216

The depreciation percentages:

- Land and buildings 0% - 2%

- Machinery 7% - 20%

- Other fixed assets 10% - 25%

- Prepayments of property, plant and equipment 0%.

In the acquisition value of Buildings and land is included an amount of capitalized interest amounting
€ 87.000.
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Current assets

Inventories and work in progress

Goods for resale

Goods for resale
Goods in transit

Provision for obsolete goods for resale

31-03-2023  31-03-2022
€ €
5.173.544 4.720.859
740.821 136.547
5.914.365 4.857.406
-166.481 -171.663
5.747.884 4.685.743

Goods for resale valued at a lower realisable value is € 196.996 as at the balance sheet date.

Receivables

There are no receivables with a term of over 1 year.

Trade receivables

Trade debtors
Provision for bad debts

Receivables from group companies

Intercompany debtors

Other current accounts

Prepaid operating expenses
Repayment NOW-arrangements
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Rabobank
Cash

All cash at bank and in hand is freely available.
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31-03-2023  31-03-2022
€ €
4.829.547 4.057.681
-50.000 -40.000
4.779.547 4.017.681
275.166 36.000
142.293 84.982
24.816 -
265.270 184.238
432.379 269.220
1.245.664 518.757
595 2
1.246.259 518.759
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Shareholders' equity

Equity
Issued share General Total
capital reserve
€ € €
Balance as at 1 April 2022 18.000 10.229.945 10.247.945
Appropriation of result - 1.714.994 1.714.994
Balance as at 31 March 2023 18.000 11.944.939 11.962.939

The company's authorised share capital amounts to € 90.000 and consists of 400 shares of € 225 each,
80 shares have been called and paid up.

Statement of the proposed appropriation of the result

The management of the company proposes to appropriate the result as follows:

The appropriation of profit for the period 1 April 2022 until 31 March 2023 in the amount of € 1.714.994
will be fully added to the other reserves.

This proposal needs to be determined by the General Meeting. However, the proposal has already
been processed in the annual accounts 1 April 2022 until 31 March 2023 for the company.
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Long-term liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Payables to banks

Mortgage loan

Balance as at 1 April

Principal amount mortgage
Cumulative repayments mortgage

Balance as at 1 April
Movements

Repayment of mortgage

Balance as at 31 March

Principal amount mortgage
Cumulative repayments mortgage
Current portion mortgage

Balance as at Repayment Remaining Remaining Interest

31 March due within a pay-back pay-back percentage
2023 year time > 1 year time > 5 year

€ € € € %

2.512.500 225.000 2.287.500 1.387.500 1,75

1-4-2022 / 1-4-2021/

31-3-2023 31-3-2022

€ €

3.768.750 3.768.750

-1.031.250 -806.250

2.737.500 2.962.500

-225.000 -225.000

3.768.750 3.768.750

-1.256.250 -1.031.250

-225.000 -225.000

2.287.500 2.512.500

Balance as at 31 March

De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. has entered into a mortgage loan with the following conditions:

- capital sum of € 4.500.000;

- duration of 14,5 years (20 years if rent of parcel will be extended);

- interestrate 3-months euribor overhead charge.

Concerning the mortgage loan De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. issued the following securities:
- first right of mortgage up to € 5.000.000 established on the real estate Kerkeplaat, Dordrecht;
- non-distribution clause in case of solvency rate lower than 30%.
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Short-term liabilities

Payables to banks

Repayment obligations

Trade payables
Trade creditors

Liabilities to group companies

Intercompany creditors

Taxes and social security contributions

Corporate income tax
Value added tax
Wage tax

Pensions

Other liabilities and accrued expenses

Holiday allowance
Miscellaneous expenses
Repayment NOW-arrangements
Other payables

Off-balance-sheet rights, obligations and arrangements

The off-balance sheet liabilities relating to the fiscal unity

31-03-2023  31-03-2022
€ €
225.000 225.000
1.444.904 1.160.350
2.161.727 1.187.607
197.047 62.937
129.217 146.132
81.776 84.823
4.575 14.570
412.615 308.462
253.736 225.611
142.872 118.244

- 15.000

4.158 5.000
400.766 363.855

For value added tax purposes De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. is part of a fiscal unity with Usha Martin Europe
B.V. Pursuant to the Collection of State Taxes Act, the companies are both severally and jointly liable for

the tax payable by the combination.

Disclosure of operating leases

The operational lease obligations entered into with third parties amount to € 2.300.

Of this amount € 2.300 is due within one year and € 0 is due after five years.
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NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Net turnover

Net turnover

Cost of sales
Cost of sales
Freight costs

Addition to stock provision

Wages and salaries

Gross salaries
Management fee Usha Martin International Ltd.

Social security charges

Social security contributions

Pension contributions

Staff pension contributions

Other staff expenses

Temporary staff

Allowance for travelling and hotel expenses
Canteen expenses

Recruitment expenses

Study and training expenses

Other personnel expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Plant and machinery
Buildings and land
Other fixed assets

Other operating expenses

Housing expenses

Operating and machine expenses
Selling expenses

Car expenses

Office expenses

General expenses
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1-4-2022 / 1-4-2021/
31-3-2023 31-3-2022
€ €
27.296.920 19.877.759
19.703.623 13.220.050
556.504 632.274
20.260.127 13.852.324
6.735 4.342
20.266.862 13.856.666
2.224.603 2.250.190
168.000 168.000
2.392.603 2.418.190
338.228 298.710
234.296 228.321
488.489 205.270
100.224 61.394
25.830 15.196
21.495 19.000
16.197 10.860
9.305 10.424
661.540 322.144
125.001 120.569
67.516 72.519
42.828 53.636
235.345 246.724
227.078 137.267
283.197 251.039
79.964 45.724
52.351 49.987
123.832 137.908
56.530 38.421
822.952 660.346
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Housing expenses

Gas, water and electricity
Cleaning expenses
Property tax

Other housing expenses

Operating and machine expenses

Workshop expenses
Repair and maintenance of inventory
Rent equipment

Selling expenses

Advertising expenses
Representation expenses
Allocation to provision for bad debts

Car expenses

Miscellaneous car expenses

Office expenses

Telephone and fax expenses
IT expenses

Communication costs
Contributions and subscriptions
Divisional charge

Other office expenses

General expenses

Audit and advisory costs
Administrative expenses
Other general expenses

Financial income and expenses

Interest and similar expenses

Interest and similar expenses

Interest bank
Exchanges differences on cash items
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1-4-2022 / 1-4-2021/
31-3-2023 31-3-2022

€ €
151.576 71.467
48.940 40.710
19.973 18.418
6.589 6.672
227.078 137.267
172.571 153.102
109.378 95.102
1.248 2.835
283.197 251.039
57.329 34.156
12.635 2.925
10.000 8.643
79.964 45.724
52.351 49.987
74.366 71.811
46.316 50.871
20.958 20.078
494 1.442
-54.000 -36.000
35.698 29.706
123.832 137.908
34.113 21.000
28.151 17.506
-5.734 -85
56.530 38.421
-78.534 -64.188
69.778 59.747
8.756 4.441
78.534 64.188
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Taxation

Income tax expense from current financial year
Income tax expense from previous financial year

Effective tax rate
Applicable tax rate

1-4-2022 / 1-4-2021/
31-3-2023 31-3-2022
€ €
-547.813 -418.721
-3.753 -3.489
-551.566 -422.210
% %

24,14 23,49
25,80 25,00

The difference between the effective and applicable tax rate is caused by the step-up tax rate as well as

minor amounts of non-deductable expenses.
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OTHER NOTES

Average number of employees

Average number of employees per segment

Sales
Workshop and logistics
General

Total average number of employees

Financial instruments

Disclosure of liquidity risks

1-4-2022 / 1-4-2021/
31-3-2023 31-3-2022
€ €

14,00 13,00
19,00 18,00
3,00 3,00
36,00 34,00

De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. uses a mortgage loan for financing the land and buildings. For funding the

operating activities sufficient working capital including cash and cash equivalents is available.

Remuneration of managing directors

The remuneration of managing directors amounts to € 168.000 (2021-2022: € 168.000).

Signing of the financial statements

Dordrecht, 17 April 2023
De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V.

Usha Martin International Ltd.
Director
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OTHER INFORMATION
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OTHER INFORMATION

Provisions of the Articles of Association relating to profit appropriation

According to the company statutory regulations the profit is at the disposal of the Annual General
Meeting.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To: The shareholder and management of De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V.
A. Report on the audit of the financial statements included in the annual report

Our opinion

We have audited the financial statements for the period 1 April 2022 until 31 March 2023 of De Ruiter
Staalkabel B.V., based in Dordrecht. In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give atrue
and fair view of the financial position of De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. as at 31 March 2023, and of its result
for the period 1 April 2022 until 31 March 2023 in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code.

The financial statements comprise:

1. the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023;
2. the statement of profit and loss for the period 1 April 2022 until 31 March 2023; and
3. the notes comprising a summary of the accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Our responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements’ section of our report.

We are independent of De Ruiter Staalkabel B.V. in accordance with the Wet toezicht accountantsor-
ganisaties (Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van ac-
countants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, a regulation
with respect to independence) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands. Fur-
thermore we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA,
Dutch Code of Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

B. Information in support of our opinion

We designed our audit procedures in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and
in forming our opinion thereon. The following information in support of our opinion was addressed in
this context, and we do not provide a separate opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Audit approach fraud risks

In accordance with our professional standards, we have paid attention to the risk of management over-
ride of controls and the risk of fraud related to the completeness and cut-off of revenue recognition of
direct deliveries. These risks are not to such an extent that we have paid significant attention to it.
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The fraud risk regarding revenue recognition has been addressed to identify and perform audit proce-

dures on manual journal entries related to the revenue accounts. We also performed audit procedures
on the goods movement supported by confirmations from suppliers of the goods combined with a mar-
gin analysis on the direct deliveries and cut-off procedures on revenue recordings after year-end.

We have mitigated the risk of management override of controls by selecting journal entries based on
risk criteria, such as manual journal entries on revenue accounts and for recording estimations. We
have reviewed these journal entries in detail, as well as all important estimates made by management,
such as the provision for obsolete stock.

Based on our risk analysis and audit work, we have not identified any other material fraud risks.

Audit approach going concern

As explained in the section ‘disclosure of going concern’ on page 8 of the financial statements, manage-
ment has performed its continuity assessment for the period of twelve months from the date of prepa-
ration of the financial statements and has not identified any events or circumstances that may cast sig-
nificant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern (hereinafter: going concern risks).
Our work to review the board's continuity assessment includes, among others:

« consideration whether the board's going concern assessment contains all relevant information of
which we have knowledge as a result of our audit, our understanding of the company, its environ-
ment and the current financial situation. We paid attention to, among other things, the develop-
ments during the financial year, the turnover and results achieved, the situation on the balance
sheet date (solvency and liquidity), the main risks and uncertainties, the cash flows and financing
needs;

« evaluation of the budgeted operating results for the period of twelve months from the date of
preparation of the financial statements, taking into account our knowledge from the audit.

Our audit procedures have not revealed any information that conflicts with management's assumptions
and assumptions about the going concern assumption used.

C. Report on the other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, the annual report contains
other information that consist of:

- the management board's report;

« otherinformation as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:
« isconsistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements;
« contains all the information regarding the management report and the other information as re-
quired by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our
audit of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information con-
tains material misstatements.
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By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch
Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is substantially less
than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the management board’s report in accordance with
Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code.

D. Description of responsibilities regarding the financial statements

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, management is responsible for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting framework
mentioned, management should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Management should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the com-
pany’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectiveis to plan and perform the audit assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may
not detect all material errors and fraud during our audit.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professional skepticism throughout
the audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence
requirements. Our audit included among others:

« Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control;
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Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit pro-
cedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opin-
ion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control;

Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting,
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going con-
cern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a company to
cease to continue as a going concern;

Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures; and

Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventsin a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Eindhoven, 17 April 2023
Govers Accountants/Adviseurs

drs. PW.A. Oprins RA
Assurance reference: 2023CA125

UHY
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One man company

Condensed finendd datementsasa 31/03/2023

Assets

Partial 2023  Total2023 ' '°52 ¥ear
B) Fixed assets
| - Intangible fixed assets 4.755 27.151
Il - Tangible fixed assets 176.628 199.640
Total fixed assets (B) 181.383 226.791
C) Current assets
Il - Receivables 867.933 534.212
due within the following year 867.501 534.212
due beyond the following year 432
advances on tax payments
IV - Liquid funds 12.029 33.824
Total current assets (C) 879.962 568.036
D) Accrued income and prepayments 18.999 12.366
Total assets 1.080.344 807.193

Schedule 1



USHA MARTIN ITALIA S.R.L. UNIPERSONALE Condensed financial statements as at 31/03/2023

Liabilities
Partial 2023 Total2023 ' '°gal¥ear
A) Shareholders' equity
| - Share capital 10.000 10.000
IV - Legal reserve 2.000 2.000
VI - Other reserves 527.534 472.026
IX - Profit (loss) for the year 72.726 55.507
Total Shareholders' Equity 612.260 539.533
C) Total reserve for severance indemnities (TFR) 104.264 74.790
D) Payables 322.271 143.382
due within the following year 322.271 143.382
due beyond the following year
E) Accrued liabilities and deferred income 41.549 49.488
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1.080.344 807.193

Schedule 2



USHA MARTIN ITALIA S.R.L. UNIPERSONALE

Profit and loss account

A) Value of production
1) Revenues from sales and services
5) Other income and revenues
other
Total Other income and revenues
Total value of production
B) Cost of production
6) Raw, ancillary and consumable materials and goods for resale
7) Services
8) Use of third party assets
9) Payroll and related costs
a) wages and salaries

b) related salaries

c/d/e) severance, pensions and similar commitments and other costs

c) severance
e) other costs
Total payroll and related costs

10) Amortisation, depreciation and writedowns

a/b/c) amortisation of intangible fixed assets, depreciation of tangible fixed

assets and other amounts written off fixed assets
a) amortisation of intangible fixed assets
b) depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Total Amortisation, depreciation and writedowns
14) Other operating expenses
Total cost of production
Difference between value and cost of production (A - B)
C) Financial income and expense
17) Interest and other financial expense
other
Total interest and other financial expense
17-bis) Currency gains and losses
Total financial income and expense (15 + 16 - 17 + - 17-bis)

Profit before taxes (A-B + - C + - D)

Schedule

Condensed financial statements as at 31/03/2023

Partial 2023 Total 2023

1.400.875

8.058
8.058
1.408.933

10.029
395.200
31.791

536.674
170.643
41.277

41.277

748.594

66.257

22.716
43.541
66.257
31.430
1.283.301
125.632

73
73

27

(46)
125.586

Fiscal year
2022

815.074

7.341
7.341
822.415

14.194
227.528
24.159

299.461
92.941
23.888
23.681

207

416.290

57.711

22.745
34.966
57.711
16.705
756.587
65.828

(28)
(28)
65.800



USHA MARTIN ITALIA S.R.L. UNIPERSONALE

20) Taxes on the income for the year
Current taxes
Total taxes on the income for the year

21) Net profit (loss) for the year

Schedule

Condensed financial statements as at 31/03/2023

’ Fiscal year
Partial 2023 Total 2023 2022
52.860 10.293
52.860 10.293
72.726 55.507
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BRUNTON SHAW UK LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The director presents his annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal activities
The company did not trade during the period under review.

Director

The director who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements was as
follows:

Mr S Jodhawat (Resigned 15 June 2022)
Mr S Saha (Appointed 13 June 2022)
Auditor

In accordance with the company's articles, a resolution proposing that Azets Audit Services be reappointed as
auditor of the company will be put at a General Meeting.

Statement of disclosure to auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditor is unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have taken all the
hecessary steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit
information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Small companies exemption

Thin ecamaat Lo .



BRUNTON SHAW UK LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The director is responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
director has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the director
must not approve the financial statements unless he is satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the director is required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The director is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. He is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.




BRUNTON SHAW UK LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF BRUNTON SHAW UK LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Brunton Shaw UK Limited (the 'company') for the year ended 31 March
2023 which comprise , the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:
¢ give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of its result then ended;
* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit ot
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the director's use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the director with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The director is responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
» the information given in the director's report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
 the director's report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.




BRUNTON SHAW UK LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
TO THE MEMBER OF BRUNTON SHAW UK LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the director's report. We have nothing to report in respect of
the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of director's remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

the director was not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies regime
and take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the director's report and from the
requirement to prepare a strategic report.

Responsibilities of director

As explained more fully in the director's responsibilities statement, the director is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the director determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, the director is responsible for
assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the director either intends to liquidate the company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’'s website at: https://
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.







BRUNTON SHAW UK LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023
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BRUNTON SHAW UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

11

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

Accounting policies

Company information

Brunton Shaw UK Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales. The
registered office is Sandy Lane, Worksop, Nottinghamshire, United Kingdom, S80 3ES.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to companies subject to the small companies regime. The disclosure requirements of
section 1A of FRS 102 have been applied other than where additional disclosure is required to show a true
and fair view.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary
amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The principal accounting
policies adopted are set out below.

Profit and loss account

The company has not traded during the year or the preceding financial period. During this time, the company
received no income and incurred no expenditure and therefore no Profit and loss account is presented in
these financial statements.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs.
Dividends payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion
of the company.

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs
are required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are
received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains and losses arising
on translation in the period are included in profit or loss.

Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year was:

2023 2022
Number Number
Total 1 2




BRUNTON SHAW UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

3 Debtors
Amounts falling due within one year:

Amounts owed by group undertakings

2023

—

2022

—
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EUROPEAN MANAGEMENT & MARINE CORPORATION LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
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companies exemption.

On behalf of the board

Director

Date: ...... QQH ..... 2,.)9
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EUROPEAN MANAGEMENT & MARINE CORPORATION LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The director is responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
director has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the director
must not approve the financial statements unless he is satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the director is required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The director is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. He is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.




EUROPEAN MANAGEMENT & MARINE CORPORATION LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF EUROPEAN MANAGEMENT & MARINE CORPORATION
LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of European Management & Marine Corporation Limited (the 'company')
for the year ended 31 March 2023 which comprise , the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements,
including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:
* give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of its results then ended;
* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit ot
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the director's use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the director with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The director is responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit:
» the information given in the director's report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
» the director's report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.




EUROPEAN MANAGEMENT & MARINE CORPORATION LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

TO THE MEMBER OF EUROPEAN MANAGEMENT & MARINE CORPORATION
LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the director's report. We have nothing to report in respect of
the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of director's remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

the director was not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies regime
and take advantage of the small companies' exemption in preparing the director's report and from the
requirement to prepare a strategic report.

Responsibilities of director

As explained more fully in the director's responsibilities statement, the director is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the director determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, the director is responsible for
assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the director either intends to liquidate the company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: https://
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
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EUROPEAN MANAGEMENT & MARINE CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

11

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

Accounting policies

Company information

European Management & Marine Corporation Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in
Scotland. The registered office is Howe Moss Place, Kirkhill Industrial Estate, Dyce, Aberdeen, United
Kingdom, AB21 0GS.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to companies subject to the small companies regime. The disclosure requirements of
section 1A of FRS 102 have been applied other than where additional disclosure is required to show a true
and fair view.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary
amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The principal accounting
policies adopted are set out below.

Profit and loss account

The company has not traded during the year or the preceding financial period. During this time, the company
received no income and incurred no expenditure and therefore no Profit and loss account is presented in
these financial statements.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs.
Dividends payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion
of the company.

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs
are required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services are
received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains and losses arising
on translation in the period are included in profit or loss.

Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year was:

2023 2022
Number Number
Total 1 2




EUROPEAN MANAGEMENT & MARINE CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

LIMITED

3

Debtors
Amounts falling due within one year:

Amounts owed by group undertakings

2023

—

2022

—
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